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CORPORATE OFFICES

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc.
P.O. Box 787
305 Hartmann Drive
Lebanon, TN 37088-0787
Phone: 615-444-5533
crackerbarrel.com

TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
Plaza Level
New York, NY 10038

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Nashville, Tennessee

10-K REPORT

A copy of the Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. Form
10-K Annual Report for Fiscal 2009 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, may be obtained
without charge through our Internet website, located
at crackerbarrel.com and (without exhibits) by writing to
the Company, attention: Investor Relations. If requested
in writing, exhibits to the Form 10-K Annual Report are
available for a reasonable fee.

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m.
Wednesday, December 2, 2009, at the Cracker Barrel
Old Country Store home office on Hartmann Drive, Lebanon,
Tennessee. There were 10,935 shareholders of record on
the record date of October 5, 2009.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND DIRECT STOCK
PURCHASE PLAN

Although our company does not sponsor a dividend
reinvestment or direct stock purchase plan, our transfer
agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
(“AST”), sponsors and administers such a program. You may
call AST at 800-485-1883 or 718-921-8124 to obtain
enrollment forms.

C racke r Ba r re l O ld Count r y S to re, Inc.

Corporate Information

We’d like to extend a special thanks to everyone pictured
in this year’s Annual Report. To the guests who were nice
enough to take a break from their day—whether they
were here for the first time, or enjoying their weekly visit
with us. And to the employees who work so hard to make
Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® a truly special place.



A smiling face. A cozy fireplace. And a warm welcome.
There’s nothing like sitting next to a good fire with a hot cup of coffee or a
hearty meal to make you feel at home. That’s why, since 1969, we’ve tried to make
Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® a comfortable, relaxing place folks can look
forward to visiting, time and again.

This year, we celebrated our 40th year of operations by doing what we do best:
making sure Cracker Barrel was a haven for our guests—whether they were
stopping in from the road, looking for a good meal, or taking a break from the
hustle and bustle of the day.

From the fireplace in our dining room, to the interesting finds that fill our country
store, to the rockers on our front porch, we’ve learned there’s no place quite
like ours. Which is why, in 2009, we decided to change our name from CBRL
Group, Inc. back to Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc., highlighting the
commitment to our brand, and the people who make it so special.

This commitment was especially important in a year that was more challenging
economically than anyone could have predicted. But we saw an opportunity
to come out a much stronger operator on the other side—by putting strategic
action plans and tight cost controls in place, while never compromising the
hearty portions, fair prices and reliable quality our guests depend on.

Though we need to keep working hard, we’re making progress despite the
headwinds. Same-store sales for our restaurant have outperformed the Knapp-
TrackTM Index for 12 consecutive quarters. And Cracker Barrel was proud
to be recognized by Restaurants & Institutions magazine with their “Best in
Family Dining” award for the 19th year in a row.

And while 40 years of Pleasing PeopleTM is quite a milestone, we believe our best
years lay not behind us, but ahead. So why not find a nice spot by the fire, settle
in, and join us as we look back on what 2009—and the last 40 years—held.

1
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Unless specifically noted otherwise, references in this annual report to
“CBRL” or “The Company” refer to Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc.
and its subsidiaries; to “Cracker Barrel” refer to Cracker Barrel
Old Country Store, Inc. or its Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® restaurant
and gift shop concept.

Alabama 28

Arizona 13

Arkansas 11

Colorado 4

Connecticut 2

Delaware 1

Florida 59

Georgia 42

Idaho 1

Illinois 22

Indiana 27

Iowa 3

Kansas 4

Kentucky 29

Louisiana 9

Maryland 5

Massachusetts 4

Michigan 16

Minnesota 1

Mississippi 11

Missouri 17

Montana 2

Nebraska 2

New Hampshire 1

New Jersey 6

New Mexico 4

New York 8

North Carolina 34

North Dakota 1

Ohio 31

Oklahoma 7

Pennsylvania 21

Rhode Island 1

South Carolina 22

South Dakota 1

Tennessee 50

Texas 40

Utah 4

Virginia 29

West Virginia 10

Wisconsin 5

40 Years Of Good Country Cookin'.
Now At 588 Places In 41 States.

As of July 31, 2009
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To Our Shareholders:

This year marks our 40th anniversary at Cracker Barrel.

Such longevity in a restaurant company is a testament to

our brand appeal and to the people who make it all

possible every day. The appeal is much greater than just

serving good food. In today’s fast-paced environment,

our guests appreciate that there’s a place where they can

go that reminds them of a simpler life and a simpler

time. The nostalgic atmosphere, food made from scratch,

and an old-fashioned country store are all part of the

experience. There’s something about that down-home

feeling that stirs up strong emotions, and we like to

believe that’s one of the reasons why people continue to

rate us very highly. For example, in a consumer poll

conducted by Restaurants & Institutions magazine this

year, Cracker Barrel was rated as the “Best Family Dining

Chain” for the 19th consecutive year. In addition, Cracker

Barrel was rated by members of the Good Sam Club as

the most RV-friendly sit-down restaurant in America for

the eighth consecutive year.

When you’ve been in the restaurant business over the

span of four decades, you learn to live through both good

and bad times. We all knew the economy was bad as we

entered our 2009 fiscal year, but we had no idea that it

was about to get a lot worse. And the worse it got,

the more consumers cut back on eating out and making

discretionary retail purchases. While we don’t think

that we’re out of the woods yet, we do see the glimmer

of some signs of improvement.

As the result of the clear direction that we had

established, we entered the slowdown as one of the best

positioned concepts in our industry – known for our

consistent quality, value and friendly service. As a result,

our same-store sales have outperformed the industry for

the past twelve quarters, as indicated by the Knapp-Track™

Index. While our existing stores have performed well,

people are still excited to see a new Cracker Barrel on the

highway – just look at our 583rd store opening in

Stevensville, Maryland. The store set an all-time record

for combined restaurant and retail sales its first full

week of operation. This performance speaks volumes – as

you may know, the idea for our unique restaurant and

retail store concept was literally scratched out in the dirt

on Highway 109 in Lebanon, Tennessee. Forty years

later, our brand remains strong!

We have a lot of progress to report, but first I want to

review our financial results for the past fiscal year. A year

ago we established our initial earnings guidance for

fiscal 2009 in the range of $2.80 to $3.00 in fully diluted

income per share from continuing operations. Despite

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc.
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the headwinds that we encountered all year long, we

reported 2009 EPS of $2.89, up 3.6 percent from fiscal

2008 and along the way we were able to beat analyst

expectations in each of the four quarters. Revenue from

continuing operations declined 0.7 percent to $2.37

billion. Comparable store restaurant sales decreased 1.7

percent (including the effect of a 2.9 percent higher

check) from fiscal 2008, and comparable store retail sales

were down 5.9 percent. Declining traffic caused operating

income to decline 5.7 percent. During the year, we opened

11 new Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® locations.

Commodity costs were up only 2.3 percent in 2009.

In the retail business, we made heavy use of markdowns

to reduce inventory. While we were more productive with

labor hours, our costs did increase from the new health

plan that we implemented at mid-year for our restaurant

employees. Our “outlier” program, which focuses generally

on our 50 bottom stores in order to improve performance,

was used to control operating expenses as a percent of

sales compared with the previous year.

I also am happy to report that despite pressure on

profits, we continue to generate strong cash flow.

Net cash from operating activities was $164 million,

which more than funded $68 million of capital

expenditures. During 2009, we paid aggregate dividends

of $0.78 per share. We combined the proceeds from

the sale/leaseback of 15 store locations and our retail

distribution center with excess cash flow to pay

down $143 million of debt. In fiscal 2010, we intend to

opportunistically explore refinancing options for our

outstanding debt.

DELIVERING THE CRACKER BARREL EXPERIENCE

When times get tough, the competition gets tougher.

You can see this by looking at the price wars being

waged by our competitors every day. We know that price

is important. In fact, it has become the main weapon

in a crowded field of dining options that are all too similar

� Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
� Cash Used to Purchase Property and Equipment
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to each other. While discounting may be necessary for

some in the restaurant industry, it’s not a part of

Cracker Barrel’s strategy. Instead, we have chosen to stay

focused on delivering the Cracker Barrel experience every

day. A big part of that experience includes serving ample

portions of great tasting, high quality food at a fair

price. We also know, however, that while our guests come

back for their favorite dishes, there also is almost

always room for something new on the menu. We’ve had

great success with new food creations this year,

especially when supported with advertising. You can

expect to see more new items with an emphasis on

“fresh” on the menu. Our guests know they can come

to Cracker Barrel for the great experience—and they

won’t need a coupon to do so.

As much as our guests enjoy visiting our stores, they

often like to take a little Cracker Barrel home with them.

In 2009, we began to offer many Cracker Barrel-branded

products as unique gifts. We also expanded the music

offering in the stores to include not just exclusive CDs but

related products. For instance, with Dolly Parton’s CD,

Backwoods Barbie – Collector’s Edition, we offered a limited-

edition Dolly Parton pink rocking chair and a special

Collector’s Photo Album, which turned out to be one of our

best selling books ever. The CD by Montgomery Gentry,

For Our Heroes, tied in with our association with Wounded

Warrior Project to support the recovery of our returning

wounded soldiers. Cracker Barrel made a contribution to

Wounded Warrior Project for each Montgomery Gentry

CD we sold. The Montgomery Gentry CD, Cracker Barrel’s

second best-selling CD, debuted at # 5 on Billboard

magazine’s Top Country Album chart and remained in the

top 20 for three weeks.

BECOMING MORE PROFITABLE INSIDE THE FOUR WALLS

Faced with rising costs and declining traffic, the

casual dining industry hit the PAUSE button on new store

growth. Cracker Barrel was no exception. We have

continued to add new stores, but at a very modest rate of

unit growth. While we see the opportunity to expand

our store base – the potential to nearly double in size –

we think it’s more prudent right now to focus on making

each one of our current stores more productive, and there-

fore more profitable. In fact, our greatest opportunity

to generate higher profits and cash flow is by closing the

performance gap between our best and weakest stores.

Within the four walls of each store lies the opportunity

to better manage food costs, labor scheduling, retail

merchandising and speed of service.

Growth can mask a lot of problems. In the high-

growth years of the 1990s and first half of the 2000s,

we opened a lot of stores but it became a challenge

to maintain consistent operations. Our “outlier” program

helps identify opportunities for profit improvement by

focusing on execution to standards in areas such as food

waste, maintenance, supplies and utilities.

Regarding food costs, our strategic sourcing group has

made and continues to make significant progress. With

a more disciplined approach to purchasing, we are able

to forecast more accurately our commodity costs and act

accordingly. Our food development team continues to
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look for labor-saving opportunities, including ingredients

that can be supplied by our vendors. We reconfigured our

Home Office test kitchen to better match the operating

environment at the store level. The goal is to ensure that

each new item can move smoothly, and profitably, from

test kitchen to table before rolling it out nationwide.

In retail, the goal is pretty simple – to improve the

profit per square foot with sales of the right products at

the right prices. There are many point-of-sale oppor-

tunities inside our stores. For example, we introduced

new mints and gum that are packaged in branded tin

containers. We also redesigned the packaging for our food

products to create a fresh new look, and one more

consistent with a country store atmosphere. We’re always

looking for ways to make the ‘hunt’ more fun for our

young guests. This includes putting more bins under the

tables filled with candy and small toys.

One area in which we must improve, however, is manage-

ment of our seasonal merchandise. When the financial

crisis hit last October, we had large quantities of Christmas

products on hand and were forced to take markdowns to

generate sales. We responded by cutting back purchases

and stretching out deliveries to end the year with retail

inventories of $108 million, $16 million lower than the

previous year’s level. Going forward, while recognizing

that seasonal products are important to our brand, we

plan to lower our dependence on seasonal merchandise

and the resulting end-of-season markdowns. An important

way that we will do that is to add a timeless assortment

of “Great Gifts” that mostly sell for under $20. We plan

to build on our success with regional items, such as

college keepsakes and apparel. We’ve also found ways to

reduce the cost and capital tied up in the logistics of

inventory management. For example, we now receive our

retail goods into Savannah, Georgia, rather than at a

port on the West Coast. This has resulted in $2 million in

annual savings in trucking charges alone, while also

improving both reliability and delivery times. More

savings were achieved by removing the storage trailers

and instead placing the inventory in the store, helping

our associates to keep the shelves well stocked. This one

move is saving us approximately $1 million.

We stake our reputation on “Pleasing PeopleTM.” It’s the

mission statement of our more than 65,000 employees,

and it starts with the hiring process. The store manager

is always looking for just the right person. Through

training and coaching, our “Rising Stars” can move through

the ranks to become a Par IV with increased pay,

vacation and lower cost for benefits. As a result, our

turnover is one of the lowest in the industry. Our hourly

turnover was below 80 percent in 2009 and manage-

ment turnover below 20 percent, even before national

unemployment exceeded 9 percent. We know that a

well-trained, experienced workforce equals better service –

and our improved guest satisfaction scores prove it.

Labor scheduling, however, remains a critical challenge

for the store manager. We currently are testing a new

system that is better able to match labor hours to traffic

levels as opposed to the old method of running 8-hour
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shifts of servers, cooks and retail salespeople. Tighter

management systems are allowing us to reduce the

number of managers in training, as well as the number of

managers at our lower-volume stores.

Another continuing challenge for a restaurant operator

is to find ways to improve guest service without

increasing costs. There are three basic questions that can

make or break the experience: 1) Did I get what I

ordered? 2) Was it served at the proper temperature? and

3) Did I have to wait long? We’re coming at this

aggressively in a number of ways. Our initial plan was to

create a “Best of the Barrel” menu. We thought that,

by removing low volume items from the menu, we could

speed up the kitchen turnaround, reduce waste and

improve profitability. While a good concept in theory, it

fell short in practice. We learned that what’s best for

us may not always be what’s best for our guests. Take, for

example, the frequent guest who came in for chicken

livers. One day they were gone from the menu. “Thanks,

but no thanks,” they said. Well, the chicken livers are

back and we’ll stay focused on making sure our menu

offers what our guests want and expect!

Research shows that by keeping the wait time to 15

minutes or less, we can greatly improve guest satisfaction.

We call our program that we’ve designed to address this

issue “Seat-to-Eat.” After several years of trial and error,

we have found specific improvements in kitchen

equipment and layout that will speed up service. Training

is currently underway and our plan is to roll the new

format across the Company over the next eighteen months.

LIVING AND GIVING IN OUR COMMUNITIES

Every Cracker Barrel location is a part of the local fabric.

We strive to give back to our communities in many

ways, particularly in the areas of education and diversity.

In 2009, nearly 100 students and teachers visited

Cracker Barrel’s Home Office to learn about the restaurant

industry, with opportunities for financial assistance

to select students in their pursuit of careers in restaurant

management and hospitality. As a sponsor of the Florida

Restaurant & Lodging Association Education Foundation’s

annual management competition, Cracker Barrel

supported West Centennial High School in Port St. Lucie,

Florida, at the National Restaurant Association’s annual

ProStart Conference. Students from all over the country

competed in the ProStart Knowledge Bowl and

Management Case Study Competition. We are also proud

of our scholarship programs for Spelman College in

Atlanta and Fisk University in Nashville, as well as our

support for the Tom Joyner Family Reunion®. As a

presenting sponsor of the Music Row Road Race, Cracker

Barrel helped raise more than $100,000 for St. Jude’s

Children’s Research Hospital through a 5k run and concert

featuring country music’s Jo Dee Messina.

In 2009 we started our own program to promote

literacy called Rockin’ Reader®, which placed double

rocking chairs, barrel-shaped bookcases and an

assortment of age-appropriate books in 122 elementary

schools in seven states where we have Cracker Barrel

stores. The idea was developed by educator Linda Minor
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from Sylva, North Carolina, where she started a similar

program in her own school to promote reading. Over the

past year, volunteers gave more than 16,000 hours

reading to children as part of the Rockin’ Reader® program.

Our goal is to expand this exciting program to another

100 schools in 2010.

OUR PEOPLE MAKE THE BRAND

We have over 65,000 people who are part of the

Cracker Barrel organization and together their efforts

make the brand what it is today. Behind them is a

network of executives and store managers who, as a team,

are accountable for making this complex business

run efficiently.

In particular, I want to extend my sincere thanks to

Forrest Shoaf, who served as both our Chief Legal Officer

and Chief Financial Officer for 14 months while we

searched for our new CFO. I also want to acknowledge the

dedication of our legal and financial teams in support

of Forrest while he was responsible for both areas. We were

fortunate to welcome Sandy Cochran as our new CFO

in March 2009. She was formerly Chief Executive Officer

of Books-a-Million, the third largest national book retailer,

and brings to Cracker Barrel the right combination of

strategy, operations and finance.

In closing, we recognize that we face significant

challenges. Our plan is to expand the reach of our brand

message to bring more people into our unique stores.

Achieving higher profit margins on each sales dollar will

largely depend on our ability to manage our costs.

Our journey to transform this business over the past few

years has resulted in us continuing to be a lead

restaurant concept with a better definition of who we are

and whom we serve, be it our guests, our employees,

our shareholders and our communities. That’s one reason

that it was only natural to go back to our old name,

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. We are thankful for

your continuing support as we continue to work hard at

delivering a great experience for all our guests, every day.

Sincerely,

Michael A. Woodhouse

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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We’re an old country store.
But we always seem to be ahead of our time. These days,

we know that running an old country store doesn’t seem like a very

radical idea. But if you were traveling the American highway back in 1969,

you would’ve been hard-pressed to find a place where you could count

on getting a good meal in a clean, comfortable setting. Maybe that’s why,

when Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® first opened its doors on

Highway 109 in Lebanon, Tennessee, this idea of ours seemed almost

revolutionary.

It’s not that we were doing something particularly extraordinary. It was

just that guests seemed to realize, from the moment they first stepped onto

our front porch, that we cared about doing things right: serving hearty

portions of traditional country recipes made from scratch, offering authentic

country wares in our store, and making sure every person we met felt that

we were truly glad to see them—throughout the year, and season after season.

Maybe it’s no coincidence that, 40 years later, Cracker Barrel once again

seems like a revolutionary concept. Given all of the economic pressures

folks are feeling these days, an easy path would have been to cut back on

the quality and the portions of our meals. Instead, we decided it was

better to keep doing things right—and give people honest value for a fair

price. After all, isn’t that the kind of forward thinking you’d expect from

an old country store?
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Pleasing People.TM” It’s what we do. And who we are.
It’s always seemed to make sense that if we want guests to feel welcome enough to

return time and again, we need to make sure our employees feel the same

way. A few years ago we started the “Rising Star” program to train new employees

and help them feel just as at home as our 30-year veterans. And we’re happy

with our progress: turnover for hourly employees is below 80%, which is

remarkable for our industry, and management turnover is the lowest in our

history. At the same time, guest complaints are lower than a year ago, while

guest scores for Overall Satisfaction, Speed of Service and Taste of Food continue

to improve.

Of course, guest satisfaction goes far beyond training. As we looked at the tough

economy facing us this year, we made the decision to tighten our belts where

we could—while executing to our high standards and never compromising the

guest experience. We began the “One Best Way” program to develop high-

performing teams who could improve our consistency in the restaurant, and we

improved our “Service That Sells” efforts to ensure our retail experience is as

great as it can be. We also sharpened our focus on cost controls to tightly manage

labor and food waste, implementing a new “Outlier” program to quickly

identify and correct issues on a store-by-store basis.

While all these efforts have helped us drive traffic during these difficult times,

we believe they’re actually fundamentally better ways to do business—and will

make Cracker Barrel a stronger brand for the years ahead.

’’
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We didn’t invent comfort food. But we’re always
working to improve on it. Here at Cracker Barrel, we have our share

of favorite meals—from Chicken n’ Dumplins to our Friday Fish Fry and,

of course, Uncle Herschel’s Favorite® breakfast. That doesn’t stop us from trying

new things, though. Some work. And some need a little work. This was a

good learning year for us, as lots of ideas we’d been testing helped us to better

execute the dishes guests crave, while successfully promoting high-margin,

easy-to-prepare items that improve the efficiency of our kitchen.

Cozy up to some new Fireside Favorites. We also were excited to

see some new faces at our dining room table. Like our Fireside Country

Skillets® breakfasts, which were so popular that we rolled out a system-wide test

of Lunch and Dinner Skillets for the spring promotion. Priced from $7.99

to $8.99, these skillets were a great value, and an even better reflection of the

Cracker Barrel brand. For summer, we brought back our award-winning

Campfire Chicken as well as our Campfire Beef Dinner. We also introduced

a new Autumn Applefest® Grilled Chicken Salad for fall, reflecting the

notion that comfort food has a lighter side, too.

Most of all, we worked hard to maintain our winning formula to make sure

that our guests can always count on Cracker Barrel—and that we continue to

deliver the kind of genuine and hospitable service that’s helped us win the

Good Sam Club Welcome Mat Award for the most RV-Friendly Sit-Down

Restaurant in America for the past eight years.
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An old country store where there’s always
something new to find. This year, we faced a pretty challenging retail

environment. So we kept a close eye on our costs, while making sure there

were plenty of fresh items on our shelves for guests to discover—especially

“everyday items,” like our new mints and gum, packaged in branded tin

containers. We also redesigned some private label items, including our Coffee,

Pancake Mix and Fried Apples, to improve our coordinated sales displays

and better reflect the quality of these premium products. In fact, the new line

was honored with a 2008 Food Service Packaging Award for Brand Delivery.

Over the years, the Cracker Barrel Old Country Store Music Catalogue® has

become an important aspect of our brand. Along with albums from Kenny Rogers

and Bill Gaither, in 2009 we were proud to release Montgomery Gentry’s CD,

For Our Heroes, which stayed in the top 35 on Billboard Magazine’s Top Current

Country Album Chart for 11 weeks. Not only did we sell almost 80,000 copies,

but a portion of each sale went to Wounded Warrior Project to support the

recovery of our returning soldiers. We also released Dolly Parton’s Backwoods

Barbie –Collector’s Edition CD. It was paired with a special Collector’s

Photo Album, which became one of our best-selling books ever, and an exclusive

pink Dolly Parton Rocker.

At the same time, our retail team was working hard behind the scenes to

improve operations at our Distribution Center. By making some smart changes

to our distribution practices, we’re now saving nearly $2 million annually.
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40 years, and we’re just getting warmed up. In 2009, we

were proud to open our 588th Cracker Barrel location. Even though we’ve

been at this a while, we like to look at every new store we open as one more

opportunity to improve on what we do. That’s why we are constantly looking

to make sure we have the right mix of dedicated employees and managers in

place to ensure that each and every guest’s experience is positive, right

from day one.

And we like to think that all this hard work is evident—especially at places like

our Stevensville, Maryland location, which set a record for combined restaurant

and retail sales during its first full week of operation. It also demonstrates to us

that, even in tough economic times, diners are still looking for great value

in a clean, family-friendly atmosphere. More importantly, it shows us that the

plans we scratched out in the dirt back in Lebanon, Tennessee 40 years ago

are as powerful today as they were back then.

At the same time, we’re continuing to keep the Cracker Barrel brand fresh and

relevant in the marketplace by making important investments in our marketing

efforts. This year we introduced some new radio and television advertising

in approximately 25% of our markets to help support our new products as they

made their way into stores. We’re also refreshing our billboard advertising

by rolling out new brand messages across the country, to help us stay on the top

of our guests’ minds—while making sure that we’re always working to find

some new friends out there, too.
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How do you say Thank You” a few
hundred million times? Looking back over the years, it’s amazing how

many guests we’ve welcomed here at Cracker Barrel Old Country Store®,

along with the thousands of employees who have become a cherished part of

our family history. When we consider all the wonderful times we’ve enjoyed,

the hard times we made it through together, and the successes we’ve shared—

all we can say is that we are truly humbled.

One small way we try to show our appreciation is by giving back whenever

we can. We’ve been doing this through a number of efforts like the Cracker Barrel

Old Country Store Foundation, which supports a wide range of programs

for education, human services, cultural affairs and the environment. We also

started the Rockin’ Reader® Program, donating double rockers and reading

materials to schools around the country to help foster caring and literacy in our

communities. And, of course, our employees were as involved as ever, joining

with countless local organizations and hundreds of dedicated people to make the

communities we live and work in nicer places to be.

So, as another year comes to a close, we want to say thank you, once again,

to everyone who’s made the last 40 years so enjoyable. We look forward to the

next time we’re together and we can pull up a rocker, sit down beside by a

comfortable fire, and talk about all the great things that we know the next

40 years will hold.

’’
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Except for specific historical information, many of the

matters discussed in this Annual Report to Shareholders

may express or imply projections of revenues or

expenditures, plans and objectives for future operations,

growth or initiatives, expected future economic

performance or the expected outcome or impact of

pending or threatened litigation. These and similar

statements regarding events or results that Cracker Barrel

Old Country Store, Inc. (the “Company”) expects will or

may occur in the future, are forward-looking statements

that involve risks, uncertainties and other factors which

may cause our actual results and performance to differ

materially from those expressed or implied by those

statements. All forward-looking information is provided

pursuant to the safe harbor established under the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and

should be evaluated in the context of these risks,

uncertainties and other factors. Forward-looking statements

generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking

terminology such as “trends,” “assumptions,” “target,”

“guidance,” “outlook,” “opportunity,” “future,” “plans,”

“goals,” “objectives,” “expectations,” “near-term,”

“long-term,” “projection,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “could,”

“expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “believe,”

“potential,” “regular,” “should,” “projects,” “forecasts” or

“continue” (or the negative or other derivatives of

each of these terms) or similar terminology. We believe

the assumptions underlying these forward-looking

statements are reasonable; however, any of the assumptions

could be inaccurate, and therefore, actual results may

differ materially from those projected in or implied by the

forward-looking statements. Factors and risks that may

result in actual results differing from this forward-looking

information include, but are not limited to, those

summarized below, as well as other factors discussed

throughout this document, including, without limitation,

the factors described under “Critical Accounting

Estimates” on pages 46 to 50 of this Annual Report or,

from time to time, in the Company’s filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), press

releases and other communications.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on

forward-looking statements made in this document,

since the statements speak only as of the document’s

date. The Company has no obligation, and does not

intend, to publicly update or revise any of these forward-

looking statements to reflect events or circumstances

occurring after the date of this document or to reflect

the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are

advised, however, to consult any future public disclosures

that the Company may make on related subjects in

its documents filed or furnished to the SEC or in its other

public disclosures.

Set forth below is a summary of the material risks

associated with our business and, therefore, any

investment in our securities. Our 2009 Annual Report on

Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on September 29, 2009

and available at sec.gov, as well as our website,

crackerbarrel.com, contains a more comprehensive discussion

of these risks, and you are encouraged to review

that Annual Report on Form 10-K and all our SEC filings.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

• Recent negative developments in the U.S. and global

economies and credit markets have adversely affected

our revenues and results and may continue to adversely

affect our results in the future.
• General economic and business conditions as well as

those specific to the restaurant or retail industries that

are largely out of our control may adversely affect our

results of operations.
• We face intense competition, and if we are unable

to continue to compete effectively, our business,

financial condition and results of operations would

be adversely affected.

Forward-Looking Statements – Risk Factors
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• The price and availability of food, ingredients,

merchandise and utilities used by our restaurants or

merchandise sold in our retail shop could adversely

affect our revenues and results of operations.
• We are dependent on attracting and retaining qualified

employees while also controlling labor costs.
• Our distribution risks are heightened because of our

single retail distribution facility; in addition, our

reliance on certain significant vendors, particularly for

foreign-sourced retail products, subjects us to

numerous risks, including possible interruptions in

supply, which could adversely affect our business.
• Our plans depend significantly on initiatives designed to

improve the efficiencies, costs and effectiveness of

our operations, and failure to achieve or sustain these

plans could affect our performance adversely.
• We have substantial indebtedness, which may decrease

our flexibility and increase our borrowing costs.
• Our advertising is heavily dependent on billboards,

which are highly regulated; a shift away from billboard

advertising poses a risk of increased advertising and

marketing costs that could adversely affect our results

of operations.
• Our business is somewhat seasonal and also can be

affected by extreme weather conditions and natural

disasters.
• If we fail to execute our business strategy, which

includes our ability to find new restaurant locations and

open new restaurants that are profitable, our business

could suffer.
• Individual restaurant locations are affected by local

conditions that could change and adversely affect the

carrying value of those locations.
• Health concerns, government regulation relating to

the consumption of food products and wide-spread

infectious diseases could affect consumer preferences

and could negatively affect our results of operations.
• Our private brands may not achieve or maintain broad

market acceptance which increases the risks we face.

• Litigation may adversely affect our business, financial

condition and results of operations.
• Unfavorable publicity could harm our business.
• The loss of key executives or difficulties in recruiting

and retaining qualified personnel could jeopardize

our success.
• We are subject to a number of risks relating to federal,

state and local regulation of our business that

may increase our costs and decrease our profit margins.
• Our current insurance programs may expose us to

unexpected costs.
• A material disruption in our information technology

and telecommunication systems could adversely affect

our business or results of operations.
• A privacy breach could adversely affect our business.
• Our reported results can be affected adversely and

unexpectedly by the implementation of new, or changes

in the interpretation of existing, accounting principles

or financial reporting requirements.
• Failure of our internal control over financial reporting

could harm our business and financial results.
• Our annual and quarterly operating results may fluctuate

significantly and could fall below the expectations of

investors, securities analysts and rating agencies due to

a number of factors, some of which are beyond our

control, resulting either in volatility or a decline in the

price of our securities.
• We are a holding company and depend on our

subsidiaries to generate sufficient cash flow to pay

dividends and meet our debt service obligations.
• Provisions in our charter and Tennessee law may

discourage potential acquirors of our company, which

could adversely affect the value of our securities.



CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Selected Financial Data
(Dollars in thousands except share data)

For each of the fiscal years ended
July 31, 2009(a)(b)(c) August 1, 2008(b)(d) August 3, 2007(b)(e)(f) July 28, 2006(b)(g) July 29, 2005(b)(h)

SELECTED INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
Total revenue $ 2,367,285 $ 2,384,521 $ 2,351,576 $ 2,219,475 $ 2,190,866
Income from continuing operations 65,957 65,303 75,983 95,501 105,363
(Loss) income from discontinued

operations, net of tax (31) 250 86,082 20,790 21,277
Net income 65,926 65,553 162,065 116,291 126,640
Basic net income per share:

Income from continuing operations 2.94 2.87 2.75 2.23 2.20
(Loss) income from discontinued

operations, net of tax — 0.01 3.11 0.48 0.45
Net income per share 2.94 2.88 5.86 2.71 2.65

Diluted net income per share:
Income from continuing operations 2.89 2.79 2.52 2.07 2.05
(Loss) income from discontinued

operations, net of tax — 0.01 2.71 0.43 0.40
Net income per share 2.89 2.80 5.23 2.50 2.45

Dividends paid per share $ 0.78 $ 0.68 $ 0.55 $ 0.51 $ 0.47

AS PERCENT OF REVENUES:
Cost of goods sold 32.3% 32.4% 31.7% 31.8% 32.7%
Labor and related expenses 38.7 38.2 38.0 37.6 37.5
Impairment and store closing charges 0.1 — — 0.2 —
Other store operating expenses 17.8 17.7 17.4 17.3 16.9
Store operating income 11.1 11.7 12.9 13.1 12.9
General and administrative expenses 5.1 5.4 5.7 5.8 5.2
Operating income 6.0 6.3 7.2 7.3 7.7
Income before income taxes 3.8 3.9 5.0 6.3 7.3

SELECTED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital (deficit)(i) $ (66,637) $ (44,080) $ (74,388) $ (6,280) $ (80,060)
Current assets from discontinued

operations — — — 401,222 362,656
Total assets 1,245,181 1,313,703 1,265,030 1,681,297 1,533,272
Long-term debt 638,040 779,061 756,306 911,464 212,218
Interest rate swap liability 61,232 39,618 13,680 7,220 —
Other long-term obligations (j) 89,610 83,147 53,819 47,888 38,705
Shareholders’ equity 135,622 92,751 104,123 302,282 869,988

SELECTED CASH FLOW DATA:
Purchase of property and equipment, net

of insurance recoveries, from continuing
operations $ 67,842 $ 87,849 $ 96,447 $ 89,167 $ 124,624

Share repurchases — 52,380 405,531 704,160 59,328

SELECTED OTHER DATA:
Common shares outstanding at end of year 22,722,685 22,325,341 23,674,175 30,926,906 46,619,803
Cracker Barrel stores open at end of year 588 577 562 543 529

AVERAGE UNIT VOLUMES(k):
Cracker Barrel restaurant $ 3,209 $ 3,282 $ 3,339 $ 3,248 $ 3,291
Cracker Barrel retail 841 898 917 876 959

34



35

COMPARABLE STORE SALES(l):
Period to period (decrease) increase

in comparable store sales:
Cracker Barrel restaurant (1.7)% 0.5% 0.7% (1.1)% 3.1%
Cracker Barrel retail (5.9) (0.3) 3.2 (8.1) (2.7)
Memo: Number of Cracker Barrel stores in

comparable base 550 531 507 482 466

(a) Includes impairment charges of $2,088 before taxes. We completed sale-leaseback transactions involving 15 of our stores and our retail distribution center
in the fourth quarter of 2009 (see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Net proceeds from the sale-leaseback transactions together with
excess cash flow from operations were used to pay down $142,759 of long-term debt.

(b) Due to the divestiture of Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc. (“Logan’s”) in fiscal 2007, Logan’s is presented as a discontinued operation.
(c) On September 18, 2008, our Board of Directors (the “Board”) increased the quarterly dividend to $0.20 per share per quarter (an annual equivalent of

$0.80 per share) from $0.18 per share per quarter. We paid dividends of $0.20 per share during the second, third and fourth quarters of 2009. Additionally,
on September 11, 2009, the Board declared a dividend of $0.20 per share payable on November 5, 2009 to shareholders of record on October 16, 2009.

(d) Includes charges of $877 before taxes for impairment and store closing costs from continuing operations.
(e) Fiscal 2007 consisted of 53 weeks while all other periods presented consisted of 52 weeks. The estimated impact of the additional week was to increase

consolidated fiscal 2007 results as follows: total revenue, $46,283; store operating income, 0.1% of total revenue; operating income, 0.2% of total
revenue; income from continuing operations, 0.1% of total revenue; and diluted income from continuing operations per share, $0.14.

(f) We completed a 5,434,774 common share tender offer and repurchased 3,339,656 common shares in the open market. We redeemed our zero-coupon
convertible notes.

(g) Includes charges of $5,369 before taxes for impairment and store closing costs from continuing operations. We completed a 16,750,000 common share
repurchase by means of a tender offer. We adopted SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” on July 30, 2005.

(h) Includes impairment charges of $431 before taxes.
(i) Working capital (deficit) excludes discontinued operations.
(j) The increase in other long-term obligations in fiscal 2008 as compared to prior years is primarily due to the adoption of FIN 48, “Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” As required by FIN 48, the liability for uncertain tax positions is included in
other long-term obligations beginning in fiscal 2008; in prior years, the liability was included in income taxes payable as a current liability.

(k) Average unit volumes include sales of all stores. Fiscal 2007 includes a 53rd week while all other periods presented consist of 52 weeks.
(l) Comparable store sales consist of sales of units open at least six full quarters at the beginning of the year; and are measured on comparable calendar weeks.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION
The following table indicates the high and low sales prices of our common stock, as reported by The Nasdaq Global Market,
and dividends paid for the quarters indicated.

Fiscal Year 2009 Fiscal Year 2008
Prices Dividends Prices Dividends

High Low Paid High Low Paid

First $30.35 $15.26 $0.18 $42.74 $35.75 $0.14
Second 22.29 10.67 0.20 37.97 24.00 0.18
Third 35.18 17.11 0.20 38.87 30.40 0.18
Fourth 34.27 25.39 0.20 38.02 18.93 0.18
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The following discussion and analysis provides information

which management believes is relevant to an assessment

and understanding of our consolidated results of

operations and financial condition. The discussion should

be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial

Statements and notes thereto. Readers also should

carefully review the information presented under the

section entitled “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission (“SEC”) and other cautionary statements in

this report. All dollar amounts reported or discussed in

this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) are shown

in thousands. References in MD&A to a year or quarter

are to our fiscal year or quarter unless otherwise noted.

This overview summarizes the MD&A, which includes

the following sections:
• Executive Overview – a general description of our

business, the restaurant industry and our key

performance indicators.
• Results of Operations – an analysis of our consolidated

statements of income for the three years presented in

our consolidated financial statements.
• Liquidity and Capital Resources – an analysis of our

primary sources of liquidity, capital expenditures and

material commitments.
• Critical Accounting Estimates – a discussion of

accounting policies that require critical judgments and

estimates.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. (the “Company,”

“our” or “we”) is a publicly traded (Nasdaq: CBRL)

company that, through certain subsidiaries, is engaged in

the operation and development of the Cracker Barrel Old

Country Store® (“Cracker Barrel”) restaurant and retail

concept. As of September 22, 2009, the Company operated

591 Cracker Barrel restaurants and gift shops located in

41 states. The restaurants serve breakfast, lunch and

dinner. The retail area offers a variety of decorative and

functional items specializing in rocking chairs, holiday

gifts, toys, apparel and foods. Until December 6, 2006, we

also owned the Logan’s Roadhouse® (“Logan’s”) restaurant

concept, but we divested Logan’s at that time (see Note

16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements). As a result,

Logan’s is presented as discontinued operations in the

Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying

notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for all

periods presented. Unless otherwise noted, this MD&A

relates only to results from continuing operations.

Effective December 8, 2008, the Company changed its

name from “CBRL Group, Inc.” to “Cracker Barrel Old

Country Store, Inc.”

Restaurant Industry

Cracker Barrel stores operate in the full-service segment

of the restaurant industry in the United States. The

restaurant business is highly competitive with respect to

quality, variety and price of the food products offered.

The industry is often affected by changes in the taste and

eating habits of the public, local and national economic

conditions affecting spending habits and the consumer’s

ability to spend, population and traffic patterns. There

are many segments within the restaurant industry which

often overlap and provide competition for widely

diverse restaurant concepts. Competition also exists in

securing prime real estate locations for new restaurants,

in hiring qualified employees, in advertising, in the

attractiveness of facilities and with competitors having

similar menu offerings or convenience.

Additionally, economic, seasonal, and weather conditions

affect the restaurant business. Adverse economic

conditions affect consumer discretionary income and

CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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dining habits. Historically, interstate tourist traffic and

the propensity to dine out have been much higher during

the summer months, thereby attributing to higher

profits in our fourth quarter. Retail sales, which in

Cracker Barrel are made substantially to restaurant

customers, are strongest in the second quarter, which

includes the Christmas holiday shopping season. Severe

weather also affects restaurant and retail sales adversely

from time to time.

Key Performance Indicators

Management uses a number of key performance measures

to evaluate our operational and financial performance,

including the following:

Comparable store sales and restaurant guest traffic

consist of sales and calculated number of guests,

respectively, of units open at least six full quarters at the

beginning of the year; and are measured on comparable

calendar weeks. This measure highlights performance

of existing stores because it excludes the impact of new

store openings.

Percentage of retail sales to total sales indicates the

relative proportion of spending by guests on retail

product at Cracker Barrel stores and helps identify overall

effectiveness of our retail operations. Management uses

this measure to analyze a store’s ability to convert

restaurant traffic into retail sales since we believe that

the substantial majority of our retail guests are also

guests in our restaurants.

Average check per person is an indicator which

management uses to analyze the dollars spent in our

stores per guest on restaurant purchases. This measure

aids management in identifying trends in guest

preferences as well as the effectiveness of menu price

increases and other menu changes.

Store operating margins are defined as total revenue

less cost of goods sold, labor and other related expenses

and other store operating expenses, all as a percent

of total revenue. Management uses this indicator as a

primary measure of operating profitability.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table highlights operating results over the

past three years:
Period to Period

Relationship to Total Revenue (Decrease) Increase

2009 2008
2009 2008 2007 vs 2008 vs 2007

Total revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% (1)% 6%
Cost of goods sold 32.3 32.4 31.7 (1) 4
Gross profit 67.7 67.6 68.3 — —
Labor and other related

expenses 38.7 38.2 38.0 1 2
Impairment and store

closing charges 0.1 — — 138 —
Other store operating

expenses 17.8 17.7 17.4 — 3
Store operating income 11.1 11.7 12.9 (6) (9)
General and administrative 5.1 5.4 5.7 (6) (7)
Operating income 6.0 6.3 7.2 (6) (10)
Interest expense 2.2 2.4 2.5 (9) (3)
Interest income — — 0.3 (100) (98)
Income before income taxes 3.8 3.9 5.0 (4) (20)
Provision for income taxes 1.0 1.2 1.8 (15) (30)
Income from continuing

operations 2.8 2.7 3.2 1 (14)
(Loss) income from

discontinued operations,
net of tax — — 3.7 (112) (100)

Net income 2.8 2.7 6.9 1 (60)

Total Revenue

The following table highlights the components of total

revenue by percentage relationships to total revenue for the

past three years:

2009 2008 2007

Total Revenue:
Cracker Barrel restaurant 79.2% 78.5% 78.4%
Cracker Barrel retail 20.8 21.5 21.6

Total revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The following table highlights comparable store sales*

results over the past two years:
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Cracker Barrel
Period to Period

(Decrease) Increase

2009 vs 2008 2008 vs 2007
(550 Stores) (531 Stores)

Cracker Barrel Restaurant (1.7)% 0.5%
Cracker Barrel Retail (5.9) (0.3)
Cracker Barrel Restaurant & Retail (2.6) 0.4

* Comparable store sales consist of sales of units open at least six full
quarters at the beginning of the year and are measured on comparable
calendar weeks.

The decrease in comparable store restaurant sales from

2008 to 2009 was due to a decrease in guest traffic of

4.6% partially offset by an increase in average check of

2.9%, including a 3.3% average menu price increase. The

increase in comparable store restaurant sales from 2007

to 2008 was due to an increase in average check of 3.4%,

including a 3.6% average menu price increase, partially

offset by a decrease in guest traffic of 2.9%.

The comparable store retail sales decreases from

2008 to 2009 and from 2007 to 2008 resulted from a

decrease in restaurant guest traffic, which we believe

resulted from uncertain consumer sentiment and reduced

discretionary spending.

The following table highlights comparable sales averages

per store* over the past three years:
2009 2008 2007

(550 Stores) (531 Stores) (507 Stores)

Cracker Barrel restaurant $3,228 $3,293 $3,350
Cracker Barrel retail 838 893 914

Total $4,066 $4,186 $4,264

* 2007 is calculated on a 53-week basis while the other periods are
calculated on a 52-week basis.

Total revenue, which decreased 0.7% in 2009 and

increased 1.4% and 6.0% in 2008 and 2007, respectively,

benefited from the opening of 11, 17 and 19 Cracker

Barrel stores in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively,

partially offset by the closing of two Cracker Barrel stores

in 2008. Total revenue in 2007 also benefited from

an additional week, which resulted in an increase in

revenues from continuing operations of $46,283.

Excluding the additional week in 2007, total revenue

from continuing operations increased 3.4% in 2008 as

compared to 2007.

The following table highlights average weekly sales*

over the past three years:
2009 2008 2007

Cracker Barrel Restaurant $61.7 $63.1 $63.0
Cracker Barrel Retail 16.2 17.3 17.3

* Average weekly sales are calculated by dividing net sales by operating
weeks and include all stores.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of total revenue was 67.7%,

67.6% and 68.3% in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

A more favorable commodity climate in 2009 allowed us

to keep our gross profit relatively flat. The decrease from

2007 to 2008 was primarily due to higher restaurant

product costs, primarily reflecting commodity inflation in

dairy, eggs, oil, grain products and produce.

Labor and Related Expenses

Labor and other related expenses include all direct

and indirect labor and related costs incurred in store

operations. Labor and other related expenses as a

percentage of total revenue were 38.7%, 38.2% and

38.0% in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The year-

to-year increases from 2008 to 2009 and from 2007 to

2008 resulted primarily from higher healthcare costs.

The increase in healthcare costs from 2008 to 2009 was

due to higher enrollment and higher utilization with

the calendar 2009 plan and termination costs associated

with the calendar 2008 plan. The increase in healthcare

costs from 2007 to 2008 was due to higher medical and

pharmacy claims and lower employee contributions.

Impairment and Store Closing Costs

During 2009, we recorded $2,088 in impairment charges.

During 2009, one owned Cracker Barrel store was

determined to be impaired, resulting in charges of $933.

This store was impaired due to lower cash flow projections.

Additionally, during 2009, we recorded a total impairment

of $1,155 on office space, property adjacent to the office

space and our management trainee housing facility. The

decision to impair these properties was due to changes in
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our planned use of these properties. We did not incur any

store closing costs in 2009.

During 2008, we closed one leased Cracker Barrel

store and one owned Cracker Barrel store, which resulted

in impairment charges of $532 and store closing costs

of $345. See Note 2 to the accompanying Consolidated

Financial Statements for more details regarding the

impairment and store closing costs. We did not record any

impairment charges or store closing costs in 2007.

Other Store Operating Expenses

Other store operating expenses, which were relatively

constant over the three-year period, include all unit-level

operating costs, the major components of which are

utilities, operating supplies, repairs and maintenance,

depreciation and amortization, advertising, rent and

credit card fees.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of

total revenue were 5.1%, 5.4% and 5.7% in 2009, 2008

and 2007, respectively. The year-to-year decrease from

2008 to 2009 was due in equal parts to lower manager

trainee salaries resulting from lower manager turnover in

2009, lower travel resulting from cost control efforts

and the non-recurrence of expenses associated with a

manager meeting which was held in 2008.

Without the additional week in 2007, general and

administrative expenses would have been 5.8% of total

revenue in 2007. The year-to-year decrease from 2007 to

2008 was due to lower incentive compensation accruals,

including share-based compensation. The decrease in

incentive compensation accruals primarily reflected lower

performance against financial objectives in 2008 versus

2007 and the non-recurrence of bonuses of $2,137 related

to strategic initiatives (see Note 14 to the accompanying

Consolidated Financial Statements for more details

regarding the bonuses related to strategic initiatives).

Interest Expense

Interest expense as a percentage of total revenue was

2.2%, 2.4% and 2.5% in 2009, 2008, and 2007,

respectively. The year-to-year decrease from 2008 to 2009

was primarily due to lower average interest rates. The

year-to-year decrease from 2007 to 2008 was primarily

due to lower average debt outstanding.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes as a percent of income before

income taxes was 26.8% for 2009, 30.2% for 2008

and 34.8% for 2007. The decrease in the effective tax

rate from 2008 to 2009 reflected a net reduction in

our liability for uncertain tax positions of $389 this year

compared to a net increase in the prior year of $1,782

and higher employer tax credits on an absolute dollar

basis and as a percent of pretax income partially offset

by higher effective state income tax rates.

The decrease in the effective tax rate from 2007 to

2008 reflected higher employer tax credits as a percent

of income before income taxes due to the decrease in

income from continuing operations, lower effective state

income tax rates and the non-recurrence of certain

non-deductible compensation expense of $1,809.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table presents a summary of our cash flows

for the last three years:

2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by
operating activities of
continuing operations $ 164,171 $124,510 $ 96,872

Net cash used in investing
activities of continuing
operations (9,087) (82,706) (87,721)

Net cash used in financing
activities of continuing
operations (155,406) (44,459) (502,309)

Net cash (used in) provided
by operating activities of
discontinued operations (47) 385 (33,818)

Net cash provided by investing
activities of discontinued
operations — — 453,394

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents $ (369) $ (2,270) $ (73,582)
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Our primary sources of liquidity are cash generated

from our operations and our borrowing capacity under our

$250,000 revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit

Facility”), which will expire on April 27, 2011. Our

internally generated cash, along with cash on hand at

August 1, 2008, borrowings under our Revolving Credit

Facility, net proceeds from our sale-leaseback transactions

and proceeds from exercises of share-based compensation

awards, were sufficient to finance all of our growth,

dividend payments, working capital needs and other cash

payment obligations in 2009.

We believe that cash at July 31, 2009, along with

cash generated from our operating activities, and the

borrowing capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility,

will be sufficient to finance our continued operations,

our continued expansion plans, principal payments on

our debt and our dividend payments for at least the next

twelve months and thereafter for the foreseeable future.

Cash Generated from Operations

Our cash generated from operating activities was

$164,171, $124,510 and $96,872 in 2009, 2008 and

2007, respectively. Most of the cash generated from

operating activities in 2009 was provided by net income

adjusted by depreciation and amortization and share-

based compensation and a decrease in retail inventories.

The increase in net cash flow provided by operating

activities from 2008 to 2009 primarily reflected

improvements in the management of our retail inventories

and the timing of payments for estimated income taxes

partially offset by the timing of payments for interest.

The increase in net cash flow provided by operating

activities from 2007 to 2008 reflected lower net income

from continuing operations in 2008 and the non-

recurrence of taxes and expenses related to the sale of

Logan’s and the redemption of our zero-coupon

convertible notes in 2007.

Borrowing Capacity and Debt Covenants

At July 31, 2009, although we did not have any out-

standing borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility,

we had $33,892 of standby letters of credit related

to securing reserved claims under workers’ compensation

insurance which reduce our availability under the

Revolving Credit Facility. At July 31, 2009, we had

$216,108 available under our Revolving Credit Facility.

We may refinance our Revolving Credit Facility in 2010.

The Revolving Credit Facility is part of our $1,250,000

credit facility (the “Credit Facility”), which also includes

a Term Loan B facility and Delayed-Draw Term Loan

facility, each of which has a scheduled maturity date of

April 27, 2013. At July 31, 2009, our Term Loan B

balance was $600,000 and our Delayed-Draw Term Loan

balance was $45,000. During 2009, we made $26,288 and

$104,700, respectively, in optional principal prepayments

under the Term Loan B facility and the Delayed-Draw

Term Loan facility. See “Material Commitments” below

and Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for

further information on our long-term debt.

The Credit Facility contains customary financial

covenants, which include a requirement that we maintain

a maximum consolidated total leverage ratio (ratio

of total indebtedness to EBITDA, which is defined as

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization) of 3.75 at July 31, 2009 and throughout

the remaining term of the Credit Facility. The Credit

Facility’s financial covenants also require that we

maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio

(ratio of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization to cash interest payable, as defined) of 3.75

at July 31, 2009. The minimum consolidated interest

coverage ratio increases to 4.00 for the fourth quarter of

2010 and for the remaining term of the Credit Facility.

At July 31, 2009, our consolidated total leverage ratio

and consolidated interest coverage ratio were 3.02 and

7.00, respectively. We presently expect to remain in
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compliance with the Credit Facility’s financial covenants

for the remaining term of the facility.

Sale-leaseback Transactions

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we completed sale-

leaseback transactions involving 15 of our stores and our

retail distribution center. Under these transactions, the

land, buildings and improvements at the locations were

sold for pre-tax net proceeds of $56,260. The stores

and the retail distribution center have been leased back

for initial terms of 20 and 15 years, respectively.

Net proceeds from the sale-leaseback transactions, along

with excess cash from operations, were used to reduce

outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility (See

“Borrowing Capacity and Debt Covenants” above). See

Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for

further information on our sale-leaseback transactions.

Share Repurchases, Dividends and Proceeds
from the Exercise of Options

On July 31, 2008, our Board of Directors approved share

repurchases of up to $65,000 of our common stock.

The principal criteria for share repurchases are that they

be accretive to expected net income per share, are within

the limits imposed by our Credit Facility and that they

be made only from free cash flow (operating cash flow

less capital expenditures and dividends) rather than

borrowings. During 2009, we did not make any share

repurchases owing to a suspension of our share

repurchase plans during the current economic climate.

During 2010, however, we have been authorized, and

intend, to repurchase shares to offset share dilution that

might result from employee option exercises or employee

share issuance.

Our Credit Facility imposes restrictions on the amount

of dividends we are able to pay. If there is no default

then existing and there is at least $100,000 then

available under our Revolving Credit Facility, we may

both: (1) pay cash dividends on our common stock if the

aggregate amount of such dividends paid during any

fiscal year is less than 15% of Consolidated EBITDA from

continuing operations (as defined in the Credit Facility)

during the immediately preceding fiscal year; and (2) in

any event, increase our regular quarterly cash dividend

in any quarter by an amount not to exceed the greater of

$.01 or 10% of the amount of the dividend paid in the

prior fiscal quarter.

During the first quarter of 2009, the Board declared a

quarterly dividend of $0.20 per common share (an annual

equivalent of $0.80 per share), an increase from the

quarterly dividend of $0.18 paid in 2008. We paid

dividends of $0.20 per share during the second, third and

fourth quarters of 2009. Additionally on September 11,

2009, the Board declared a dividend of $0.20 per share

payable on November 5, 2009 to shareholders of record

on October 16, 2009.

During 2009, we received proceeds of $4,362 from the

exercise of share-based compensation awards and the

corresponding issuance of 397,344 shares of our common

stock. The tax benefit realized upon exercise of share-

based compensation awards was $937.

Working Capital

We had negative working capital of $66,637 at July 31,

2009 versus negative working capital of $44,080 at

August 1, 2008. The change in working capital compared

with August 1, 2008 primarily reflected a reduction in our

retail inventories. In the restaurant industry,

substantially all sales are either for cash or third-party

credit card. Like many other restaurant companies, we

are able to, and often do operate with negative working

capital. Restaurant inventories purchased through our

principal food distributor are on terms of net zero days,

while restaurant inventories purchased locally generally

are financed from normal trade credit. Retail inventories

purchased domestically generally are financed from

normal trade credit, while imported retail inventories
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generally are purchased through wire transfers. These

various trade terms are aided by rapid turnover of the

restaurant inventory. Employees generally are paid on

weekly, bi-weekly or semi-monthly schedules in arrears

for hours worked, and certain expenses such as certain

taxes and some benefits are deferred for longer periods

of time.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures (purchase of property and

equipment) were $67,842, $87,849 and $96,447 in 2009,

2008 and 2007, respectively. Capital expenditures in

2009, 2008 and 2007 are net of proceeds from insurance

recoveries of $262, $178 and $91, respectively. Costs

of new locations accounted for the majority of these

expenditures. The decrease in capital expenditures from

2008 to 2009 is primarily due to a reduction in the

number of new locations acquired and under construction

as compared to the prior year. We estimate that our

capital expenditures during 2010 will be between $70,000

and $75,000. This estimate includes certain costs related

to the acquisition of sites and construction of seven

new stores to be opened in 2010, as well as for acquisition

and construction costs for locations to be opened

in 2011, capital expenditures for maintenance programs

and operational innovation initiatives. We intend

to fund our capital expenditures with cash flows from

operations and borrowings under our Revolving Credit

Facility, as necessary.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than various operating leases, which are disclosed

more fully in “Material Commitments” below and Notes 2

and 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, we

have no other material off-balance sheet arrangements.

Material Commitments

For reporting purposes, the schedule of future minimum

rental payments required under operating leases,

excluding billboard leases, uses the same lease term as

used in the straight-line rent calculation. This term

includes certain future renewal options although we are

not currently legally obligated for all optional renewal

periods. This method is consistent with the lease term

used in the straight-line rent calculation, as described in

Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our contractual cash obligations and commitments as

of July 31, 2009, are summarized in the tables below:

Contractual Payments Due by Year

Obligations(a) Total 2010 2011-1012 2013-2014 After 2014

Term Loan B(b) $ 600,000 $ 6,847 $ 13,695 $579,458 —
Delayed-Draw

Term Loan
Facility(b) 45,000 459 918 43,623 —

Note payable(c) 473 110 218 145 —
Operating leases

excluding
billboards(d) 765,144 36,890 71,269 72,381 $584,604

Operating leases
for billboards 26,780 18,339 8,369 72 —

Capital leases 89 22 44 23 —
Purchase

obligations(e) 257,276 98,521 99,185 52,699 6,871
Other long-term

obligations(f) 29,002 — 2,177 444 26,381
Total contractual

cash
obligations $1,723,764 $161,188 $195,875 $748,845 $617,856

Amounts of Commitment Expirations by Year

Total 2010 2011-1012 2013-2014 After 2014

Revolving Credit
facility(g) $250,000 — $250,000 — —

Standby letters
of credit 33,892 $6,930 26,962 — —

Guarantees(h) 2,919 555 1,705 $ 659 —
Total commitments $286,811 $7,485 $278,667 $ 659 —

(a) At July 31, 2009, the entire liability for uncertain tax positions
(including penalties and interest) is classified as a long-term liability.
At this time, we are unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate of
the amounts and timing of payments in individual years due to
uncertainties in the timing of the effective settlement of tax positions.
As such, the liability for uncertain tax positions of $26,137 is not
included in the contractual cash obligations and commitments table
above.

(b) The balances on the Term Loan B and Delayed-Draw Term Loan, at July
31, 2009, are, respectively, $600,000 and $45,000. Using the
minimum principal payment schedules on the Term Loan B and
Delayed-Draw Term Loan facilities and projected interest rates, we will
have interest payments of $44,203, $86,056 and $30,415 in 2010,
2011-2012 and 2013-2014, respectively. These interest payments are
calculated using a 7.07% and 4.12% interest rate, respectively, for the
swapped and unswapped portion of our debt. The 7.07% interest rate
is the same rate as our fixed rate under our interest rate swap plus our
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credit spread at July 31, 2009 of 1.50%. The projected interest rate of
4.12% was estimated by using the average of the three-year and five-
year swap rates at July 31, 2009 plus our credit spread of 1.50%.

(c) The note payable consists of a five-year note with a vendor in the
original principal amount of $507 and represents the financing of
prepaid maintenance for telecommunications equipment. The note
payable is payable in monthly installments of principal and interest of
$9 through October 16, 2013 and bears interest at 2.88%. Principal
and interest payments for the note payable are included in the
contractual cash obligations and commitments table above.

(d) Includes base lease terms and certain optional renewal periods, for
which at the inception of the lease, it is reasonably assured that we
will exercise.

(e) Purchase obligations consist of purchase orders for food and retail
merchandise; purchase orders for capital expenditures, supplies and
other operating needs and other services; and commitments under
contracts for maintenance needs and other services. We have excluded
contracts that do not contain minimum purchase obligations. We
excluded long-term agreements for services and operating needs that
can be cancelled within 60 days without penalty. We included long-
term agreements and certain retail purchase orders for services and
operating needs that can be cancelled with more than 60 days notice
without penalty only through the term of the notice. We included long-
term agreements for services and operating needs that only can be
cancelled in the event of an uncured material breach or with a penalty
through the entire term of the contract. Due to the uncertainties of
seasonal demands and promotional calendar changes, our best
estimate of usage for food, supplies and other operating needs and
services is ratably over either the notice period or the remaining life of
the contract, as applicable, unless we had better information available
at the time related to each contract.

(f) Other long-term obligations include our Non-Qualified Savings Plan
($22,583, with a corresponding long-term asset to fund the liability;
see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), Deferred
Compensation Plan ($3,798), FY2007, FY2008 and FY2009 Long-Term
Retention Incentive Plans ($2,158), and FY2009 District Manager Long-
Term Performance Plan ($463).

(g) We did not have any outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Credit
Facility as of July 31, 2009. We paid $493 in non-use fees (also known
as commitment fees) on the Revolving Credit Facility during 2009.
Based on having no outstanding borrowings at July 31, 2009 and our
current unused commitment fee as defined in the Credit Facility, our
unused commitment fees in 2010 would be $545; however, the actual
amount will differ based on actual usage of the Revolving Credit
Facility in 2010.

(h) Consists solely of guarantees associated with properties that have been
assigned. We are not aware of any non-performance under these
arrangements that would result in us having to perform in accordance
with the terms of those guarantees.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk, such as changes in

interest rates and commodity prices. We do not hold or

use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Interest Rate Risk. We have interest rate risk relative

to our outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility.

At July 31, 2009, our outstanding borrowings under

our Credit Facility totaled $645,000 (see Note 5 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements). Loans under the

Credit Facility bear interest, at our election, either at

the prime rate or LIBOR plus a percentage point spread

based on certain specified financial ratios.

Our policy has been to manage interest cost using a

mix of fixed and variable rate debt (see Notes 5, 6, 9 and

18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements). To manage

this risk in a cost efficient manner, we entered into an

interest rate swap on May 4, 2006 in which we agreed to

exchange with a counterparty, at specified intervals

effective August 3, 2006, the difference between fixed

and variable interest amounts calculated by reference to

an agreed-upon notional principal amount. The swapped

portion of our outstanding debt is fixed at a rate of 5.57%

plus our current credit spread, or 7.07% based on today’s

credit spread, over the 7-year life of the interest rate swap.

See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for

further discussion of our interest rate swap.

The impact on our annual results of operations of a

one-point interest rate change on the outstanding

balance of our unswapped outstanding debt as of July 31,

2009, would be approximately $554.

Commodity Price Risk. Many of the food products that

we purchase are affected by commodity pricing and are,

therefore, subject to price volatility caused by market

conditions, weather, production problems, delivery

difficulties and other factors which are outside our control

and which are generally unpredictable. Four food

categories (dairy (including eggs), beef, poultry and pork)

account for the largest shares of our food purchases at

approximately 14%, 12%, 11% and 10%, respectively.

Other categories affected by the commodities markets,

such as grains and seafood, may each account for as much

as 7% of our food purchases. While we have some of our
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food items prepared to our specifications, our food items

are based on generally available products, and if any

existing suppliers fail, or are unable to deliver in

quantities required by us, we believe that there are

sufficient other quality suppliers in the marketplace that

our sources of supply can be replaced as necessary. We

also recognize, however, that commodity pricing is

extremely volatile and can change unpredictably and over

short periods of time. Changes in commodity prices would

affect us and our competitors generally, and depending

on the terms and duration of supply contracts, sometimes

simultaneously. We enter into supply contracts for certain

of our products in an effort to minimize volatility of

supply and pricing. In many cases, or over the longer

term, we believe we will be able to pass through some

or much of the increased commodity costs by adjusting

our menu pricing. From time to time, competitive

circumstances, or judgments about consumer acceptance

of price increases, may limit menu price flexibility, and

in those circumstances increases in commodity prices can

result in lower margins, as happened to us in 2008.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards

Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”

(“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,

establishes a framework for measuring fair value and

expands disclosures about fair value measurements for

financial assets and liabilities, as well as any other assets

and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring

basis in the financial statements. Effective August 2,

2008, the first day of 2009, we adopted SFAS No. 157 on

a prospective basis. The adoption of SFAS No. 157

resulted in a $5,809 decrease in our interest rate swap

liability related to non-performance risk, in the first

quarter of 2009, with the offset reflected in accumulated

other comprehensive loss, net of the deferred tax asset,

on our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 3 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information on our fair value measurements and Note 6

to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information on our interest rate swap.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position

(“FSP”) FAS No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement

No. 157” (“FSP FAS No. 157-2”), which deferred the

effective date of SFAS No. 157 as it applies to certain

nonfinancial assets and liabilities to fiscal years

beginning after November 15, 2008. The deferral applies

to such items as nonfinancial long-lived asset groups

measured at fair value for an impairment assessment.

We elected the deferral for nonfinancial assets and

liabilities under FSP FAS No. 157-2. We do not expect the

adoption of FSP FAS No. 157-2 in the first quarter of

2010 will have a significant impact on our consolidated

financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 107-1 and

APB No. 28-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of

Financial Instruments” (“FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No.

28-1”), which amends SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about

Fair Value of Financial Instruments” to require disclosures

about fair value of financial instruments for interim

reporting periods of publicly traded companies as well as

in annual financial statements. It also amends Accounting

Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 28-1, “Interim

Financial Reporting” to require those disclosures in

summarized financial information at interim reporting

periods. FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1 is effective

for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009.

The adoption of FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1

in the fourth quarter of 2009 had no impact on our

consolidated financial statements.
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Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based
Payment Awards

The Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a

consensus on EITF 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax

Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards”

(“EITF 06-11”) in June 2007. The EITF consensus indicates

that the tax benefit received on dividends associated

with share-based awards that are charged to retained

earnings should be recorded in additional paid-in capital

and included in the pool of excess tax benefits available

to absorb potential future tax deficiencies on share-based

award payments. We adopted EITF 06-11 on August 2,

2008, the first day of 2009. The adoption of EITF 06-11

did not have a significant impact on our consolidated

financial statements.

Derivative Disclosures

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161,

“Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities” (“SFAS No. 161”), which amends SFAS No. 133,

“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 161 requires

enhanced disclosures about how and why an entity uses

derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and

related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133

and its related interpretations, and how derivative

instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s

financial position, results of operations, financial

performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective

for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after

November 15, 2008. We adopted SFAS No. 161 on a

prospective basis in the third quarter of 2009;

accordingly, disclosures related to periods prior to the

date of adoption have not been presented. The adoption

of SFAS No. 161 did not have a significant impact on

our consolidated financial statements. See Note 6 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements for our derivative

disclosures.

GAAP Hierarchy and FASB Accounting Standards
Codification

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”

(“SFAS No. 162”). SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources

of accounting principles and the framework for selecting

the principles to be used in the preparation of

financial statements of nongovernmental entities that

are presented in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

(“GAAP”). SFAS No. 162 was effective on November 15,

2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 162 did not have a

significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, “The

FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy

of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS

No. 168”). SFAS No. 168 replaces SFAS No. 162 and

establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification

as the single source of authoritative nongovernmental

GAAP, except for rules and interpretive releases of the

SEC, which are sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC

registrants. This standard is effective for financial

statements for interim and annual reporting periods

ending after September 15, 2009. We do not expect that

the adoption of SFAS No. 168 in the first quarter of 2010

will have a significant impact on our consolidated

financial statements.

Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, “Subsequent

Events” (“SFAS No. 165”), which establishes the

requirements for evaluating, recording and disclosing

events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet

date in an entity’s financial statements. SFAS No. 165 is

effective for interim and annual financial periods ending

after June 15, 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 165 in the

fourth quarter of 2009 did not have a significant

impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in

conformity with GAAP. The preparation of these financial

statements requires us to make estimates and

assumptions about future events and apply judgments

that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We base our

estimates and judgments on historical experience, current

trends, outside advice from parties believed to be experts

in such matters and on various other assumptions that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

the results of which form the basis for making judgments

about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources. However,

because future events and their effects cannot be

determined with certainty, actual results could differ from

those assumptions and estimates, and such differences

could be material.

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in

Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of

those policies may result in materially different amounts

being reported under different conditions or using

different assumptions. Critical accounting estimates are

those that:
• management believes are both most important to the

portrayal of our financial condition and operating

results and
• require management’s most difficult, subjective or

complex judgments, often as a result of the need to

make estimates about the effect of matters that are

inherently uncertain.

We consider the following accounting estimates

to be most critical in understanding the judgments that

are involved in preparing our Consolidated Financial

Statements.
• Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Provision for

Asset Dispositions

• Insurance Reserves
• Inventory Reserves
• Tax Provision
• Share-Based Compensation
• Unredeemed Gift Cards
• Legal Proceedings

Management has reviewed these critical accounting

estimates and related disclosures with the Audit

Committee of our Board of Directors.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Provision
for Asset Dispositions

We assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may not be recoverable. Recoverability of

assets is measured by comparing the carrying value of the

asset to the undiscounted future cash flows expected to

be generated by the asset. If the total expected future

cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset,

the carrying amount is written down to the estimated

fair value of an asset to be held and used or the fair

value, net of estimated costs of disposal, of an asset to

be disposed of, and a loss resulting from impairment

is recognized by a charge to income. Judgments and

estimates that we make related to the expected useful

lives of long-lived assets are affected by factors such as

changes in economic conditions and changes in operating

performance. The accuracy of such provisions can vary

materially from original estimates and management

regularly monitors the adequacy of the provisions until

final disposition occurs.

We have not made any material changes in our

methodology for assessing impairments during the past

three fiscal years and we do not believe that there is a

reasonable likelihood that there will be a material change

in the estimates or assumptions used by us to assess

impairment on long-lived assets. However, if actual

results are not consistent with our estimates and

assumptions used in estimating future cash flows and fair
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values of long-lived assets, we may be exposed to losses

that could be material.

In 2009, we incurred impairment charges related to

one of our Cracker Barrel stores and three corporate

properties. In 2008, we incurred impairment charges

resulting from the closing of two Cracker Barrel stores. We

recorded no impairment losses during 2007. For a more

detailed discussion of these costs see the sub-section

entitled “Impairment and Store Closing Costs” under the

section entitled “Results of Operations” presented earlier

in the MD&A.

Insurance Reserves

We self-insure a significant portion of our expected

workers’ compensation, general liability and health

insurance programs. We purchase insurance for individual

workers’ compensation claims that exceed either $250,

$500 or $1,000 depending on the state in which the

claim originates. We purchase insurance for individual

general liability claims that exceed $500. Prior to January

1, 2009, we did not purchase such insurance for our

group health program, but did limit our benefits for any

individual (employee or dependents) in the program to

not more than $1,000 lifetime, and, in certain cases, to

not more than $100 in any given plan year. Beginning

January 1, 2009, we split our group health program into

two programs. The first program is self-insured and limits

our offered benefits for any individual (employee or

dependents) to not more than $100 in any given plan

year, and, in certain cases, to not more than $15 in any

given plan year. The second program is fully insured and

as such has no liability for unpaid claims. We record a

liability for the self-insured portion of our group health

program for all unpaid claims based upon a loss

development analysis derived from actual group health

claims payment experience provided by our third party

administrator.

We record a liability for workers’ compensation

and general liability for all unresolved claims and for an

actuarially determined estimate of incurred but not

reported claims at the anticipated cost to us based upon

an actuarially determined reserve as of the end of our

third quarter and adjust it by the actuarially determined

losses and actual claims payments for the fourth quarter.

Those reserves and losses are determined actuarially from

a range of possible outcomes within which no given

estimate is more likely than any other estimate. As such,

we record the actuarially determined losses at the low

end of that range and discount them to present value

using a risk-free interest rate based on actuarially

projected timing of payments. We also monitor actual

claims development, including incurrence or settlement of

individual large claims during the interim period between

actuarial studies as another means of estimating the

adequacy of our reserves.

Our accounting policies regarding insurance reserves

include certain actuarial assumptions and management

judgments regarding economic conditions, the frequency

and severity of claims and claim development history and

settlement practices. We have not made any material

changes in the accounting methodology used to establish

our insurance reserves during the past three fiscal years

and do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood that

there will be a material change in the estimates or

assumptions used to calculate the insurance reserves.

However, changes in these actuarial assumptions or

management judgments in the future may produce

materially different amounts of expense that would be

reported under these insurance programs.

Inventory Reserves

Cost of goods sold includes the cost of retail merchandise

sold at our stores utilizing the retail inventory

accounting method. Inventory valuation provisions are

included for retail inventory obsolescence and retail
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inventory shrinkage. Retail inventory is reviewed on a

quarterly basis for obsolescence and adjusted as

appropriate based on assumptions made by management

and judgment regarding inventory aging and future

promotional activities. Cost of goods sold includes an

estimate of shrinkage that is adjusted upon physical

inventory counts. Physical inventory counts are conducted

throughout the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal

year based upon a cyclical inventory schedule. An

estimate of shrinkage is recorded for the time period

between physical inventory counts by using a three-year

average of the physical inventories’ results on a store-

by-store basis. We have not made any material changes in

the methodology used to estimate retail inventory

obsolescence or shrinkage during 2009 and do not believe

there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be a

material change in the future estimates or assumptions

used to calculate obsolescence or shrinkage. However,

actual obsolescence or shrinkage recorded may produce

materially different amounts than we have estimated.

Tax Provision

We must make estimates of certain items that comprise

our income tax provision. These estimates include

effective state and local income tax rates, employer tax

credits for items such as FICA taxes paid on employee tip

income, Work Opportunity and Welfare to Work credits,

as well as estimates related to certain depreciation and

capitalization policies.

We recognize (or derecognize) a tax position taken

or expected to be taken in a tax return in the financial

statements when it is more likely than not (i.e., a

likelihood of more than fifty percent) that the position

would be sustained (or not sustained) upon examination

by tax authorities. A recognized tax position is then

measured at the largest amount of benefit that is

greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon

ultimate settlement.

Our estimates are made based on current tax laws, the

best available information at the time of the provision

and historical experience. We file our income tax returns

many months after our year end. These returns are

subject to audit by various federal and state governments

years after the returns are filed and could be subject

to differing interpretations of the tax laws. We then must

assess the likelihood of successful legal proceedings

or reach a settlement with the relevant taxing authority.

Although we believe that the judgments and estimates

used in establishing our tax provision are reasonable, an

unsuccessful legal proceeding or a settlement could result

in material adjustments to our Consolidated Financial

Statements and our consolidated financial position.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant

date based on the fair value of the award and is

recognized as expense over the requisite service period.

Our policy is to recognize compensation cost for

awards with only service conditions and a graded vesting

schedule on a straight-line basis over the requisite

service period for the entire award. Additionally, our

policy is to issue new shares of common stock to satisfy

exercises of share-based compensation awards.

The fair value of each option award granted was

estimated on the date of grant using a binomial lattice-

based option valuation model. This model incorporates

the following ranges of assumptions:
• The expected volatility is a blend of implied volatility

based on market-traded options on our stock and

historical volatility of our stock over the contractual

life of the options.
• We use historical data to estimate option exercise and

employee termination behavior within the valuation

model; separate groups of employees that have similar

historical exercise behavior are considered separately
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for valuation purposes. The expected life of options

granted is derived from the output of the option

valuation model and represents the period of time the

options are expected to be outstanding.
• The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury

yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods

within the contractual life of the option.
• The expected dividend yield is based on our current

dividend yield as the best estimate of projected

dividend yield for periods within the contractual life of

the option.

The expected volatility, option exercise and

termination assumptions involve management’s best

estimates at that time, all of which affect the fair value

of the option calculated by the binomial lattice-based

option valuation model and, ultimately, the expense that

will be recognized over the life of the option. We update

the historical and implied components of the expected

volatility assumption quarterly. We update option exercise

and termination assumptions quarterly. The expected life

is a by-product of the lattice model and is updated when

new grants are made.

Compensation expense is recognized for only the

portion of options that are expected to vest. Therefore,

an estimated forfeiture rate derived from historical

employee termination behavior, grouped by job

classification, is applied against share-based compensation

expense. The forfeiture rate is applied on a straight-line

basis over the service (vesting) period for each separately

vesting portion of the award as if the award were, in-

substance, multiple awards. We update the estimated

forfeiture rate to actual on each of the vesting dates and

adjust compensation expense accordingly so that the

amount of compensation cost recognized at any date is

at least equal to the portion of the grant-date value of

the award that is vested at that date.

Generally, the fair value of each nonvested stock grant

is equal to the market price of our stock at the date of

49

grant reduced by the present value of expected dividends

to be paid prior to the vesting period, discounted using

an appropriate risk-free interest rate.

All of our nonvested stock grants are time vested

except the nonvested stock grants of one executive that

are based upon the achievement of strategic goals.

Compensation cost for performance-based awards is

recognized when it is probable that the performance

criteria will be met. At each reporting period, we reassess

the probability of achieving the performance targets and

the performance period required to meet those targets.

Determining whether the performance targets will be

achieved involves judgment and the estimate of expense

may be revised periodically based on the probability of

achieving the performance targets. Revisions are reflected

in the period in which the estimate is changed. If any

performance goals are not met, no compensation cost is

ultimately recognized and, to the extent previously

recognized, compensation cost is reversed. During 2008,

based on our determination that the performance goals

for one executive’s nonvested stock grants would not be

achieved, we reversed approximately $3,508 of share-

based compensation expense.

Other than the reversal of share-based compensation

in 2008 for nonvested stock grants whose performance

goals would not be met, we have not made any material

changes in our estimates or assumptions used to

determine share-based compensation during the past

three fiscal years. We do not believe there is a reasonable

likelihood that there will be a material change in the

future estimates or assumptions used to determine share-

based compensation expense. However, if actual results

are not consistent with our estimates or assumptions, we

may be exposed to changes in share-based compensation

expense that could be material.
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Unredeemed Gift Cards

Unredeemed gift cards represent liabilities related to

unearned income and are recorded at their expected

redemption value. No revenue is recognized in connection

with the point-of-sale transaction when gift cards are

sold. For those states that exempt gift cards from their

escheat laws, we make estimates of the ultimate

unredeemed (“breakage”) gift cards in the period of the

original sale and amortize this breakage over the

redemption period that other gift cards historically have

been redeemed by reducing the liability and recording

revenue accordingly. For those states that do not exempt

gift cards from their escheat laws, we record breakage in

the period that gift cards are remitted to the state and

reduce our liability accordingly. Any amounts remitted to

states under escheat or similar laws reduce our deferred

revenue liability and have no effect on revenue or

expense while any amounts that we are permitted to

retain are recorded as revenue. Changes in redemption

behavior or management’s judgments regarding

redemption trends in the future may produce materially

different amounts of deferred revenue to be reported.

We have not made any material changes in the

methodology used to record the deferred revenue liability

for unredeemed gift cards during the past three fiscal

years and do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood

that there will be material changes in the future

estimates or assumptions used to record this liability.

However, if actual results are not consistent with our

estimates or assumptions, we may be exposed to losses

or gains that could be material.

Legal Proceedings

We are parties to various legal and regulatory proceedings

and claims incidental to our business. In the opinion of

management, however, based upon information currently

available, the ultimate liability with respect to these

actions will not materially affect our consolidated results

of operations or financial position. We review outstanding

claims and proceedings internally and with external

counsel as necessary to assess probability of loss and for

the ability to estimate loss. These assessments are re-

evaluated each quarter or as new information becomes

available to determine whether a reserve should be

established or if any existing reserve should be adjusted.

The actual cost of resolving a claim or proceeding

ultimately may be substantially different than the amount

of the recorded reserve. In addition, because it is not

permissible under GAAP to establish a litigation reserve

until the loss is both probable and estimable, in some

cases there may be insufficient time to establish a

reserve prior to the actual incurrence of the loss (upon

verdict and judgment at trial, for example, or in the case

of a quickly negotiated settlement).
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We are responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting (as

defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated

under the Exchange Act). We maintain a system of

internal controls that is designed to provide reasonable

assurance in a cost-effective manner as to the fair and

reliable preparation and presentation of the consolidated

financial statements, as well as to safeguard assets from

unauthorized use or disposition.

Our control environment is the foundation for our

system of internal control over financial reporting and is

embodied in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our

Financial Code of Ethics, and our Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics, all of which may be viewed on our

website. They set the tone for our organization and

include factors such as integrity and ethical values. Our

internal control over financial reporting is supported by

formal policies and procedures, which are reviewed,

modified and improved as changes occur in business

condition and operations. Neither our disclosure controls

and procedures nor our internal controls, however, can or

will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system,

no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide

only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the

objectives of the control system are met. Further, the

design of a control system must reflect the benefits

of controls relative to their costs. Because of the inherent

limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of

controls can provide absolute assurance that all control

issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company

have been detected.

CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting based on the

framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission. This evaluation included review

of the documentation of controls, evaluation of the

design effectiveness of controls, testing of the operating

effectiveness of controls and a conclusion on this

evaluation. We have concluded that our internal control

over financial reporting was effective as of July 31, 2009,

based on these criteria.

In addition, Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent

registered public accounting firm, has issued an

attestation report on our internal control over financial

reporting, which is included herein.

Michael A. Woodhouse

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Sandra B. Cochran

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
OF CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE, INC.

LEBANON, TENNESSEE

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. and

subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of July 31, 2009 and

August 1, 2008, and the related consolidated statements

of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash

flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period

ended July 31, 2009. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,

on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well

as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. and

subsidiaries as of July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three fiscal years in the period ended July 31,

2009, in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), the Company’s internal control

over financial reporting as of July 31, 2009, based

on the criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report

dated September 29, 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

Nashville, Tennessee

September 29, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
OF CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE, INC.

LEBANON, TENNESSEE

We have audited the internal control over financial

reporting of Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. and

subsidiaries (the ”Company”) as of July 31, 2009, based

on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s

management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting, included in the accompanying

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting

based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding

of internal control over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk, and

performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting

is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the

company’s principal executive and principal financial

officers, or persons performing similar functions, and

effected by the company’s board of directors, management,

and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to

the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition

of the company’s assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control

over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections

of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all

material respects, effective internal control over financial

reporting as of July 31, 2009, based on the criteria

established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), the consolidated financial

statements of the Company as of and for the year ended

July 31, 2009, and our report dated September 29, 2009,

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated

financial statements.

Nashville, Tennessee

September 29, 2009
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CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(In thousands except share data)

July 31, August 1,
2009 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,609 $ 11,978
Property held for sale — 3,248
Accounts receivable 12,730 13,484
Income taxes receivable 4,078 6,919
Inventories 137,424 155,954
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,193 10,981
Deferred income taxes 23,291 18,075
Total current assets 198,325 220,639

Property and Equipment:
Land 286,161 299,608
Buildings and improvements 686,736 711,030
Buildings under capital leases 3,289 3,289
Restaurant and other equipment 379,459 359,089
Leasehold improvements 200,704 183,729
Construction in progress 16,089 15,071
Total 1,572,438 1,571,816
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization of capital leases 570,662 526,576
Property and equipment – net 1,001,776 1,045,240
Other assets 45,080 47,824
Total $1,245,181 $1,313,703

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 92,168 $ 93,112
Current maturities of long-term debt and other long-term obligations 7,422 8,714
Taxes withheld and accrued 32,081 29,459
Accrued employee compensation 49,994 46,185
Accrued employee benefits 32,633 34,241
Deferred revenues 22,528 22,618
Accrued interest expense 10,379 12,485
Other accrued expenses 17,757 17,905
Total current liabilities 264,962 264,719
Long-term debt 638,040 779,061
Capital lease obligations 60 77
Interest rate swap liability 61,232 39,618
Other long-term obligations 89,610 83,147
Deferred income taxes 55,655 54,330

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 2 and 18)
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock – 100,000,000 shares of $.01 par value authorized; no shares issued — —
Common stock – 400,000,000 shares of $.01 par value authorized; 2009 – 22,722,685

shares issued and outstanding; 2008 – 22,325,341 shares issued and outstanding 227 223
Additional paid-in capital 12,972 731
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (44,822) (27,653)
Retained earnings 167,245 119,450
Total shareholders’ equity 135,622 92,751
Total $1,245,181 $1,313,703

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Consolidated Statement of Income
(In thousands except share data)

Fiscal years ended
July 31, August 1, August 3,

2009 2008 2007

Total revenue $ 2,367,285 $ 2,384,521 $ 2,351,576
Cost of goods sold 764,909 773,757 744,275
Gross profit 1,602,376 1,610,764 1,607,301
Labor and other related expenses 916,256 909,546 892,839
Impairment and store closing charges 2,088 877 —
Other store operating expenses 421,594 422,293 410,131
Store operating income 262,438 278,048 304,331
General and administrative expenses 120,199 127,273 136,186
Operating income 142,239 150,775 168,145
Interest expense 52,177 57,445 59,438
Interest income — 185 7,774
Income before income taxes 90,062 93,515 116,481
Provision for income taxes 24,105 28,212 40,498
Income from continuing operations 65,957 65,303 75,983
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (31) 250 86,082
Net income $ 65,926 $ 65,553 $ 162,065

Basic net income per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 2.94 $ 2.87 $ 2.75
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 0.01 3.11
Net income per share $ 2.94 $ 2.88 $ 5.86

Diluted net income per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 2.89 $ 2.79 $ 2.52
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 0.01 2.71

Net income per share $ 2.89 $ 2.80 $ 5.23

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 22,458,971 22,782,608 27,643,098

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 22,787,633 23,406,044 31,756,582

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional Other Total

Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Shareholders’
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Earnings Equity

Balances at July 28, 2006 30,926,906 $ 309 $ 4,257 $ (4,529) $ 302,245 $ 302,282
Comprehensive Income:

Net income — — — — 162,065 162,065
Change in fair value of interest rate swap, net

of tax benefit of $2,001 (See Note 6) — — — (4,459) — (4,459)
Total comprehensive income — — — (4,459) 162,065 157,606

Cash dividends declared – $.56 per share — — — — (14,908) (14,908)
Share-based compensation — — 12,717 — — 12,717
Exercise of share-based awards 1,125,924 11 33,168 — — 33,179
Tax benefit realized upon exercise of share-based

compensation awards — — 6,642 — — 6,642
Issuance of common stock 395,775 4 12,132 — — 12,136
Purchases and retirement of common stock (8,774,430) (87) (68,916) — (336,528) (405,531)

Balances at August 3, 2007 23,674,175 237 — (8,988) 112,874 104,123
Comprehensive Income:

Net income — — — — 65,553 65,553
Change in fair value of interest rate swap, net

of tax benefit of $7,273 (See Note 6) — — — (18,665) — (18,665)
Total comprehensive income — — — (18,665) 65,553 46,888

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle – adoption of FIN 48 (Note 2) — — — — 2,898 2,898

Cash dividends declared - $.72 per share — — — — (16,504) (16,504)
Share-based compensation — — 8,491 — — 8,491
Exercise of share-based compensation awards 276,166 2 304 — — 306
Tax deficiency realized upon exercise of

share-based compensation awards — — (1,071) — — (1,071)
Purchases and retirement of common stock (1,625,000) (16) (6,993) — (45,371) (52,380)

Balances at August 1, 2008 22,325,341 223 731 (27,653) 119,450 92,751
Comprehensive Income:

Net income — — — — 65,926 65,926
Change in fair value of interest rate swap, net

of tax benefit of $4,445 (See Note 6) — — — (17,169) — (17,169)
Total comprehensive income — — — (17,169) 65,926 48,757

Cash dividends declared – $.80 per share — — — — (18,131) (18,131)
Share-based compensation — — 6,946 — — 6,946
Exercise of share-based compensation awards 397,344 4 4,358 — — 4,362
Tax benefit realized upon exercise of share-based

compensation awards — — 937 — — 937

Balances at July 31, 2009 22,722,685 $ 227 $ 12,972 $(44,822) $ 167,245 $ 135,622

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(In thousands except share data)
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CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Fiscal years ended
July 31, August 1, August 3,

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 65,926 $ 65,553 $162,065

Loss (income) from discontinued operations, net of tax 31 (250) (86,082)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

of continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization 59,286 57,689 56,908
Loss on disposition of property and equipment 4,421 1,195 53
Impairment 2,088 532 —
Accretion on zero-coupon contingently convertible senior notes and new notes — — 5,237
Share-based compensation 6,946 8,491 12,717
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (937) — (6,642)

Cash paid for accretion of original issue discount on zero-coupon contingently
convertible senior notes and new notes — — (27,218)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 754 (1,725) (325)
Income taxes receivable 3,794 (6,919) —
Inventories 18,530 (11,538) (16,113)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,788 1,648 (8,234)
Other assets 2,009 (3,597) (2,381)
Accounts payable (1,021) 52 22,116
Taxes withheld and accrued 2,622 (2,742) 1,296
Income taxes payable — 990 (6,280)
Accrued employee compensation 3,809 (2,385) 7,988
Accrued employee benefits (1,608) (685) (3,592)
Deferred revenues (90) 1,456 2,315
Accrued interest expense (2,106) 12,321 (11,934)
Other accrued expenses (672) (1,188) 1,537
Other long-term obligations (1,953) 5,462 5,931
Deferred income taxes 554 150 (12,490)

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 164,171 124,510 96,872
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment (68,104) (88,027) (96,538)
Proceeds from insurance recoveries of property and equipment 262 178 91
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 58,755 5,143 8,726
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (9,087) (82,706) (87,721)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 620,200 797,650 234,100
Proceeds from exercise of share-based compensation awards 4,362 306 33,179
Principal payments under long-term debt and other long-term obligations (762,530) (774,292) (355,089)
Purchases and retirement of common stock — (52,380) (405,531)
Deferred financing costs (768) — —
Dividends on common stock (17,607) (15,743) (15,610)
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 937 — 6,642
Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations (155,406) (44,459) (502,309)

Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of discontinued operations (47) 385 (33,818)
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations — — 453,394
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations (47) 385 419,576
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (369) (2,270) (73,582)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,978 14,248 87,830
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 11,609 $ 11,978 $ 14,248

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest, excluding interest rate swap payments, net of amounts capitalized $ 32,344 $ 37,180 $ 62,437
Interest rate swap 19,469 5,578 1,035
Accretion of original issue discount of zero-coupon contingently

convertible senior notes and new notes — — 27,218
Income taxes 23,782 32,030 101,495

Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activity:
Conversion of zero-coupon contingently convertible senior notes to common stock — — $ 12,136
Change in fair value of interest rate swap $ (21,614) $ (25,938) (6,460)
Change in deferred tax asset for interest rate swap 4,445 7,273 2,001

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 57
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1 DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. and its affiliates

(collectively, in the Notes, the “Company”) are principally

engaged in the operation and development in the United

States of the Cracker Barrel Old Country Store® (“Cracker

Barrel”) restaurant and retail concept and, until December 6,

2006, the Logan’s Roadhouse® (“Logan’s”) restaurant

concept. The Company sold Logan’s on December 6, 2006

(see Note 16). As a result, Logan’s is classified as

discontinued operations for all periods presented in the

Consolidated Financial Statements. Effective December 8,

2008, the Company changed its name from “CBRL Group,

Inc.” to “Cracker Barrel Old Country Store, Inc.”

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GAAP – The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements

have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”).

Fiscal year – The Company’s fiscal year ends on the

Friday nearest July 31st and each quarter consists of

thirteen weeks unless noted otherwise. The Company’s fiscal

year ended August 3, 2007 consisted of 53 weeks and the

fourth quarter of 2007 consisted of fourteen weeks.

References in these Notes to a year or quarter are to the

Company’s fiscal year or quarter unless noted otherwise.

Principles of consolidation – The Consolidated Financial

Statements include the accounts of the Company and

its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All

significant intercompany transactions and balances have

been eliminated.

Financial instruments – The fair values of cash and

cash equivalents and deferred compensation plan assets

(included in other assets) are based on quoted market

prices. Accounts receivable and accounts payable at July 31,

2009 and August 1, 2008, approximate their carrying

amounts due to their short duration. The fair value of the

Company’s variable-rate Term Loan B, Delayed-Draw

Term Loan, and Revolving Credit facilities, based on quoted

market prices, totaled approximately $619,200 and

$728,677 on July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s interest rate

swap is the present value of the expected cash flows, which

is calculated by using the replacement fixed rate in the

then-current market, and incorporates the Company’s own

non-performance risk. See Note 3 for additional information

on the Company’s fair value measurements.

Cash and cash equivalents – The Company’s policy is

to consider all highly liquid investments purchased with

an original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents.

Accounts receivable – Accounts receivable, net of the

allowance for doubtful accounts, represents their estimated

net realizable value. Provisions for doubtful accounts

are recorded based on historical collection experience and

the age of the receivables. Accounts receivable are written

off when they are deemed uncollectible.

Property held for sale – Property held for sale consists

of real estate properties that the Company expects to sell

within one year. The assets are reported at the lower of

carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Based on

current market conditions, the Company no longer expects

to sell any of its properties previously classified as held

for sale within a year. As a result, in the fourth quarter of

2009, the Company removed these properties from the

property held for sale classification and recorded the

properties as property and equipment in the Consolidated

Balance Sheet. At August 1, 2008, property held for sale

was $3,248 and consisted of closed Cracker Barrel stores.

Inventories – Inventories are stated at the lower of cost

or market. Cost of restaurant inventory is determined

by the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. In 2009, due to

lower inventory levels at the Company’s retail distribution

center as compared to prior years, approximately 80% of

retail inventories were valued using the retail inventory

method and the remaining 20% were valued using an

average cost method. In prior years, approximately 70% of

retail inventories were valued using the retail inventory

method and the remaining 30% were valued using an

average cost method. Valuation provisions are included for

retail inventory obsolescence, returns and amortization

of certain items.

Cost of goods sold includes the cost of retail

merchandise sold at the Cracker Barrel stores utilizing the

retail inventory accounting method. It includes an estimate

of shrinkage that is adjusted upon physical inventory

CRACKER BARREL OLD COUNTRY STORE , INC .

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands except share data)
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counts. Physical inventory counts are conducted throughout

the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year based upon

a cyclical inventory schedule. An estimate of shrinkage

is recorded for the time period between physical inventory

counts by using a three-year average of the physical

inventories’ results on a store-by-store basis.

Property and equipment – Property and equipment are

stated at cost. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation

and amortization on these assets are computed by use

of the straight-line and double-declining balance methods

over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets,

as follows:

Years

Buildings and improvements 30-45
Buildings under capital leases 15-25
Restaurant and other equipment 2-10
Leasehold improvements 1-35

Depreciation expense was $57,706, $56,149 and

$55,331 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Accelerated

depreciation methods are generally used for income

tax purposes.

Capitalized interest, excluding discontinued operations,

was $445, $682 and $890 for 2009, 2008 and 2007,

respectively.

Gain or loss is recognized upon disposal of property and

equipment and the asset and related accumulated

depreciation and amortization amounts are removed from

the accounts.

Maintenance and repairs, including the replacement of

minor items, are charged to expense and major additions to

property and equipment are capitalized.

Impairment of long-lived assets – The Company assesses

the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is

measured by comparing the carrying value of the asset to

the undiscounted future cash flows expected to be

generated by the asset. If the total expected future cash

flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the

carrying amount is written down to the estimated fair value

of an asset to be held and used or the fair value, net of

estimated costs of disposal, of an asset to be disposed of,

and a loss resulting from impairment is recognized by a

charge to income. Judgments and estimates made by the

Company related to the expected useful lives of long-lived

assets are affected by factors such as changes in economic

conditions and changes in operating performance. The

accuracy of such provisions can vary materially from

original estimates and management regularly monitors the

adequacy of the provisions until final disposition occurs.

The Company incurred impairment charges in 2009 and

2008. These impairments were recorded based upon the

lower of unit carrying amount or fair value less costs to

sell. The fair values were determined based upon estimates

provided by outside parties using market comparables.

During 2009, the Company incurred impairment charges of

$2,088. During 2009, one owned Cracker Barrel store was

determined to be impaired, resulting in charges of $933.

This store was impaired due to lower cash flow projections.

Additionally, during 2009, the Company recorded a total

impairment of $1,155 on office space, property adjacent to

the office space and the Company’s management trainee

housing facility. The decision to impair these properties

was due to changes in the Company’s planned use of

these properties.

During 2008, the Company incurred impairment and

store closing costs resulting from the closing of Cracker

Barrel stores. In 2008, the Company closed one leased

Cracker Barrel store and one owned Cracker Barrel store,

which resulted in impairment charges of $532 and store

closing charges of $345. The decision to close the leased

store was due to its age, the expiration of the lease and

the proximity of another Cracker Barrel store. The decision

to close the owned location was due to its age, expected

future capital expenditure requirements and changes in

traffic patterns around the store over the years. The store

closing costs, which included employee termination

benefits and other costs, are included in the impairment

and store closing costs line on the Consolidated Statement

of Income. At August 1, 2008, no liability was recorded for

store closing costs. The financial information related to all

restaurants closed in 2008 is not material to the Company’s

consolidated financial position, results of operations

or cash flows, and, therefore, have not been presented as

discontinued operations.
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Derivative instruments and hedging activities – The

Company is exposed to market risk, such as changes in

interest rates and commodity prices. The Company uses

derivative instruments to mitigate its interest rate risk. In

2006, the Company entered into an interest rate swap

which is accounted for as a cash flow hedge (see Note 6).

Many of the food products purchased by the Company

are affected by commodity pricing and are, therefore,

subject to price volatility caused by weather, production

problems, delivery difficulties and other factors that are

outside the control of the Company and generally are

unpredictable. Changes in commodity prices affect the

Company and its competitors generally and, depending on

terms and duration of supply contracts. In many cases,

the Company believes it will be able to pass through some

or much of increased commodity costs by adjusting its

menu pricing. From time to time, competitive circumstances

or judgments about consumer acceptance of price

increases may limit menu price flexibility, and in those

circumstances, increases in commodity prices can result

in lower margins for the Company.

Comprehensive income – Comprehensive income

includes net income and the effective unrealized portion

of the changes in the fair value of the Company’s

interest rate swap.

Segment reporting – Operating segments are

components of an enterprise about which separate financial

information is available that is evaluated regularly by the

chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate

resources and in assessing performance. Utilizing these

criteria, the Company manages its business on the basis of

one reportable operating segment (see Note 8).

Revenue recognition – The Company records revenue

from the sale of products as they are sold. The Company

provides for estimated returns based on return history

and sales levels. The Company’s policy is to present sales

in the Consolidated Statement of Income on a net

presentation basis after deducting sales tax.

Unredeemed gift cards and certificates – Unredeemed

gift cards and certificates represent a liability of the

Company related to unearned income and are recorded at

their expected redemption value. No revenue is recognized

in connection with the point-of-sale transaction when gift

cards or gift certificates are sold. For those states that

exempt gift cards and certificates from their escheat laws,

the Company makes estimates of the ultimate unredeemed

(“breakage”) gift cards and certificates in the period of the

original sale and amortizes this breakage over the

redemption period that other gift cards and certificates

historically have been redeemed by reducing its liability

and recording revenue accordingly. For those states that do

not exempt gift cards and certificates from their escheat

laws, the Company records breakage in the period that gift

cards and certificates are remitted to the state and reduces

its liability accordingly. Any amounts remitted to states

under escheat or similar laws reduce the Company’s deferred

revenue liability and have no effect on revenue or expense

while any amounts that the Company is permitted to retain

are recorded as revenue. Changes in redemption behavior

or management’s judgments regarding redemption trends in

the future may produce materially different amounts of

deferred revenue to be reported.

Insurance – The Company self-insures a significant

portion of its workers’ compensation, general liability and

health insurance programs. The Company has purchased

insurance for individual workers’ compensation claims

that exceed either $250, $500 or $1,000 depending on

the state in which the claim originates. The Company has

purchased insurance for individual general liability claims

that exceed $500. Prior to January 1, 2009, the Company

did not purchase such insurance for its group health

program, but did limit its offered benefits for any

individual (employee or dependents) in the program to

not more than $1,000 lifetime, and, in certain cases, to

not more than $100 in any given plan year. Beginning

January 1, 2009, the Company split its group health

program into two programs. The first program is self-

insured and limits our offered benefits for any individual

(employee or dependents) in the program to not more

than $100 in any given plan year, and, in certain cases,

to not more than $15 in any given plan year. The second

program is fully insured and as such has no liability for

unpaid claims. The Company records a liability for the

self-insured portion of its group health program for all

unpaid claims based upon a loss development analysis
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derived from actual group health claims payment

experience provided by its third party administrator.

The Company records a liability for workers’ compensation

and general liability for all unresolved claims and for an

actuarially determined estimate of incurred but not

reported claims at the anticipated cost to the Company as

of the end of the Company’s third quarter and adjusts

it by the actuarially determined losses and actual claims

payments for the fourth quarter. The reserves and losses are

determined actuarially from a range of possible outcomes

within which no given estimate is more likely than any

other estimate. As such, the Company records the losses at

the low end of that range and discounts them to present

value using a risk-free interest rate based on actuarially

projected timing of payments. The Company’s accounting

policies regarding insurance reserves include certain

actuarial assumptions or management judgments regarding

economic conditions, the frequency and severity of

claims and claim development history and settlement

practices. Unanticipated changes in these factors may

produce materially different amounts of expense.

Store pre-opening costs – Start-up costs of a new store

are expensed when incurred, with the exception of rent

expense under operating leases, in which the straight-line

rent includes the pre-opening period during construction,

as explained further under the “Operating leases” section in

this Note.

Operating leases – The Company has ground leases and

office space leases that are recorded as operating leases.

Most of the leases have rent escalation clauses and

some have rent holiday and contingent rent provisions.

The liabilities under these leases are recognized on the

straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life, with

a maximum of 35 years, or the related lease life. The

Company uses a lease life that generally begins on the

date that the Company becomes legally obligated under

the lease, including the pre-opening period during

construction, when in many cases the Company is not

making rent payments, and generally extends through

certain renewal periods that can be exercised at the

Company’s option, for which at the inception of the lease,

it is reasonably assured that the Company will exercise

those renewal options. The same lease life is used for

reporting future minimum lease commitments as is used

for the straight-line rent calculation.

Certain leases provide for rent holidays, which are

included in the lease life used for the straight-line rent

calculation. Rent expense and an accrued rent liability

are recorded during the rent holiday periods, during which

the Company has possession of and access to the property,

but is not required or obligated to, and normally does

not, make rent payments.

Certain leases provide for contingent rent, which is

determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of

specified levels. The Company records a contingent rent

liability and corresponding rent expense when it is probable

sales have been achieved in amounts in excess of the

specified levels.

Advertising – The Company expenses the costs of

producing advertising the first time the advertising takes

place. Net advertising expense was $42,371, $42,160

and $40,522 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Rent

expense from continuing operations under operating

leases for billboards was $25,950, $25,177 and $25,204

for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following is a schedule by year of the future

minimum rental payments required under operating leases

for advertising billboards as of July 31, 2009:

Year

2010 $ 18,339
2011 6,472
2012 1,897
2013 62
2014 10
Total $ 26,780

Share-based compensation – The Company has four

share-based compensation plans for employees and non-

employee directors, which authorize the granting of stock

options, nonvested stock and other types of awards

consistent with the purpose of the plans (see Note 12). The

number of shares authorized for future issuance under the

Company’s plans as of July 31, 2009 totals 1,139,878.

Stock options granted under these plans are granted with

an exercise price equal to the market price of the

Company’s stock on the date; those option awards generally

vest at a cumulative rate of 33% per year beginning on
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the first anniversary of the grant date and expire ten years

from the date of grant.

Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant

date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized

as expense over the requisite service period. The Company’s

policy is to recognize compensation cost for awards

with only service conditions and a graded vesting schedule

on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period

for the entire award. Additionally, the Company’s policy is

to issue new shares of common stock to satisfy exercises

of share-based compensation awards.

Income taxes – Employer tax credits for FICA taxes

paid on employee tip income and other employer tax

credits are accounted for by the flow-through method.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of

temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and

the amounts used for income tax purposes. Effective

August 4, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions

of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)

Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB Statement No.

109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold

and measurement attribute for the financial statement

recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or

expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 requires that

a position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return be

recognized (or derecognized) in the financial statements

when it is more likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more

than fifty percent) that the position would be sustained

(or not sustained) upon examination by tax authorities. A

recognized tax position is then measured at the largest

amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely

of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The cumulative

effect of adopting FIN 48 resulted in a net increase of

$2,898 to the Company’s beginning 2008 retained

earnings. See Note 15 for additional information regarding

income taxes.

Net income per share – Basic consolidated net income

per share is computed by dividing consolidated net income

to common shareholders by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding for the reporting period.

Diluted consolidated net income per share reflects the

potential dilution that could occur if securities, options or

other contracts to issue common stock were exercised

or converted into common stock and is based upon the

weighted average number of common and common

equivalent shares outstanding during the year. Common

equivalent shares related to stock options and nonvested

stock and stock awards issued by the Company are

calculated using the treasury stock method.

In 2002, the Company issued zero-coupon contingently

convertible notes (“Senior Notes”). During 2007, a portion

of the Senior Notes was exchanged for a new issue of zero-

coupon contingently convertible notes (“New Notes”). The

New Notes were substantially the same as the Senior Notes

except the New Notes had a net share settlement feature

which allowed the Company, upon conversion of a New

Note, to settle the accreted principal amount of the debt

for cash and issue shares of the Company’s common stock

for the conversion value in excess of the accreted value.

The Senior Notes required the issuance of the Company’s

common stock upon conversion. The Company’s Senior

Notes and New Notes were redeemed during 2007. Prior to

redemption, the New Notes were included in the calculation

of diluted consolidated net income per share if their

inclusion was dilutive under the treasury stock method and

the Senior Notes were included in the calculation of diluted

consolidated net income per share if their inclusion was

dilutive under the “if-converted” method. Additionally,

diluted consolidated net income per share was calculated

excluding the after-tax interest and financing expenses

associated with the Senior Notes since these Senior Notes

were treated as if converted into common stock. Following

the redemption of the Senior Notes and New Notes,

outstanding employee and director stock options and

nonvested stock and stock awards issued by the Company

represent the only dilutive effects on diluted consolidated

net income per share. See Note 17.

Subsequent events – Management has evaluated

subsequent events through September 29, 2009, which is

the date the financial statements were issued.

Use of estimates – Management of the Company has

made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the

reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
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contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated

Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting periods to prepare

these Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with

GAAP. Management believes that such estimates have

been based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and

that the resulting estimates are reasonable for use in the

preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Actual results, however, could differ from those estimates.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards

Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”

(“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,

establishes a framework for measuring fair value and

expands disclosures about fair value measurements for

financial assets and liabilities, as well as any other assets

and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring

basis in the financial statements. Effective August 2, 2008,

the first day of 2009, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157

on a prospective basis. The adoption of SFAS No. 157

resulted in a $5,809 decrease in the Company’s interest rate

swap liability related to non-performance risk, in the first

quarter of 2009, with the offset reflected in accumulated

other comprehensive loss, net of the deferred tax asset, on

the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. See Note 3

for additional information on the Company’s fair value

measurements and Note 6 for additional information on

the Company’s interest rate swap.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position

(“FSP”) FAS No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement

No. 157” (“FSP FAS No. 157-2”), which deferred the

effective date of SFAS No. 157 as it applies to certain

nonfinancial assets and liabilities to fiscal years beginning

after November 15, 2008. The deferral applies to such items

as nonfinancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair

value for an impairment assessment. We elected the

deferral for nonfinancial assets and liabilities under FSP FAS

No. 157-2. The Company does not expect the adoption of

FSP FAS No. 157-2 in the first quarter of 2010 will have a

significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 107-1 and

APB No. 28-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of

Financial Instruments” (“FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No.

28-1”), which amends SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair

Value of Financial Instruments” to require disclosures about

fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting

periods of publicly traded companies as well as in annual

financial statements. It also amends Accounting Principles

Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 28-1, “Interim Financial

Reporting” to require those disclosures in summarized

financial information at interim reporting periods. FSP FAS

No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1 is effective for interim

reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption

of FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1 in the fourth

quarter of 2009 had no impact on the Company’s

consolidated financial statements.

Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based
Payment Awards

The Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a

consensus on EITF 06-11, “Accounting for Income Tax

Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards”

(“EITF 06-11”) in June 2007. The EITF consensus indicates

that the tax benefit received on dividends associated with

share-based awards that are charged to retained earnings

should be recorded in additional paid-in capital and

included in the pool of excess tax benefits available to

absorb potential future tax deficiencies on share-based

award payments. The Company adopted EITF 06-11 on

August 2, 2008, the first day of 2009. The adoption of EITF

06-11 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s

consolidated financial statements.

Derivative Disclosures

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures

about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”

(“SFAS No. 161”), which amends SFAS No. 133, “Accounting

for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS

No. 133”). SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures

about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments,

how derivative instruments and related hedged items

are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related

interpretations, and how derivative instruments and related
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hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, results

of operations, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS

No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods

beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company adopted

SFAS No. 161 on a prospective basis in the third quarter

of 2009; accordingly, disclosures related to periods prior to

the date of adoption have not been presented. The

adoption of SFAS No. 161 did not have a significant impact

on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. See

Note 6 for the Company’s derivative disclosures.

GAAP Hierarchy and FASB Accounting Standards
Codification

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy

of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS

No. 162”). SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources of

accounting principles and the framework for selecting the

principles to be used in the preparation of financial

statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented

in conformity with GAAP. SFAS No. 162 was effective on

November 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 162 did not

have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated

financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, “The FASB

Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS No.

168”). SFAS No. 168 replaces SFAS No. 162 and establishes

the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the single

source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAP, except

for rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and

Exchange Commission (“SEC”), which are sources of

authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. This standard is

effective for financial statements for interim and annual

reporting periods ending after September 15, 2009.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of SFAS

No. 168 in the first quarter of 2010 will have a significant

impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, “Subsequent

Events” (“SFAS No. 165”), which establishes the

requirements for evaluating, recording and disclosing events

or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in

an entity’s financial statements. SFAS No. 165 is effective

for interim and annual financial periods ending after

June 15, 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 165 in the fourth

quarter of 2009 did not have a significant impact on the

Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is defined under SFAS No. 157 as the price that

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in the principal or most advantageous market in an

orderly transaction between market participants on the

measurement date. SFAS No. 157 also establishes a three-

level hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize

the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency

of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability on

the measurement date. The three levels of inputs to the

valuation methodology are:
• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) for an identical

asset or liability in an active market.
• Level 2 – quoted prices for a similar asset or liability in

an active market or model-derived valuations in which

all significant inputs are observable for substantially the

full term of the asset or liability.
• Level 3 – unobservable and significant to the fair value

measurement of the asset or liability.

The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at

fair value on a recurring basis subject to the disclosure

requirements of SFAS No. 157 at July 31, 2009 were

as follows:
Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant Fair Value
Markets for Observable Unobservable as of

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs July 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2009

Cash equivalents* $ 48 $ — $ — $ 48
Deferred compensation

plan assets** 22,583 — — 22,583
Total assets at fair value $22,631 $ — $ — $22,631
Interest rate swap liability

(see Note 6) $ — $61,232 $ — $61,232
Total liabilities at fair value $ — $61,232 $ — $61,232

*Consists of money market fund investments.
**Represents plan assets invested in mutual funds established under a

Rabbi Trust for the Company’s non-qualified savings plan and is included
in the consolidated balance sheet as other assets (see Note 13).
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The Company’s money market fund investments and

deferred compensation plan assets are measured at fair

value using quoted market prices. The fair value of the

Company’s interest rate swap liability is determined based

on the present value of expected future cash flows. Since

the interest rate swap is based on the LIBOR forward curve,

which is observable at commonly quoted intervals for the

full term of the swap, it is considered a Level 2 input.

Nonperformance risk is reflected in determining the interest

rate swap’s fair value by using the Company’s credit spread

less the risk-free interest rate, both of which are observable

at commonly quoted intervals for the swap’s term. Thus,

the adjustment for nonperformance risk is also considered

a Level 2 input.

4 INVENTORIES

Inventories were comprised of the following at:

July 31, August 1,
2009 2008

Retail $108,412 $124,572
Restaurant 16,782 17,439
Supplies 12,230 13,943
Total $137,424 $155,954

5 DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following at:

July 31, August 1,
2009 2008

Term Loan B
payable on or before April 27, 2013 $600,000 $633,456

Delayed-Draw Term Loan Facility
payable on or before April 27, 2013 45,000 151,103

Revolving Credit Facility
payable on or before April 27, 2011 — 3,200

Note payable 444 —
645,444 787,759

Current maturities (7,404) (8,698)
Long-term debt $638,040 $779,061

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt subsequent

to July 31, 2009 are as follows:

Year

2010 $ 7,404
2011 7,407
2012 7,410
2013 623,187
2014 36
Total $645,444

Credit Facility

The Company’s credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) consists

of the Term Loan B facility and the Delayed-Draw Term Loan

facility with a scheduled maturity date of April 27, 2013 and

a $250,000 Revolving Credit facility expiring April 27, 2011.

Loan acquisition costs associated with the Term Loan B

facility, the Delayed-Draw Term Loan facility and the

Revolving Credit facility were capitalized in the amount of

$7,122, $2,456, and $1,964, respectively. These costs are

amortized over the respective terms of the facilities.

The interest rates for the Term Loan B facility, Delayed-

Draw Term Loan facility and the Revolving Credit facility are

based on either LIBOR or prime. A spread is added to the

interest rates according to a defined schedule based on the

Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio as defined in

the Credit Facility, 1.50% as of July 31, 2009 and August 1,

2008. As of July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, the interest

rates on the Term Loan B facility were 2.52% and 4.29%,

respectively. As of July 31, 2009, $40,000 of the

outstanding balance under the Delayed-Draw Term facility

had an interest rate of 3.75% and the remaining $5,000

had an interest rate of 1.79%. As of August 1, 2008, the

interest rate on the Delayed-Draw Term Loan B facility

was 4.29%. In 2006, the Company entered into an interest

rate swap which resulted in the swapped portion of the

Company’s outstanding term loans being fixed at 7.07%

at July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008 (see Note 6). At

July 31, 2009, the Company did not have any outstanding

borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. As of

August 1, 2008, the interest rate on the Revolving Credit

facility was 5.50%. At July 31, 2009, the Company had

$33,892 of standby letters of credit, which reduce the

Company’s availability under the Revolving Credit facility

(see Note 18). At July 31, 2009, the Company had

$216,108 available under the Revolving Credit facility.

The Credit Facility contains customary financial

covenants, which are specified in the agreement and

include maintenance of a maximum consolidated total

leverage ratio and a minimum consolidated interest

coverage ratio. At July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, the

Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.
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The Credit Facility also imposes restrictions on the

amount of dividends the Company is able to pay. If there is

no default then existing and there is at least $100,000

then available under the Revolving Credit facility, the

Company may both: (1) pay cash dividends on its common

stock if the aggregate amount of dividends paid in any

fiscal year is less than 15% of Consolidated EBITDA from

continuing operations (as defined in the Credit Facility)

during the immediately preceding fiscal year; and (2) in

any event, increase its regular quarterly cash dividend in

any quarter by an amount not to exceed the greater of $.01

or 10% of the amount of the dividend paid in the prior

fiscal quarter.

Note Payable

The note payable consists of a five-year note with a

vendor with an original principal amount of $507 and

represents the financing of prepaid maintenance for

telecommunications equipment. The note payable is payable

in monthly installments of principal and interest of $9

through October 16, 2013 and bears interest at 2.88%.

6 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company uses derivative instruments to mitigate its

interest rate risk. The Company does not hold or use

derivative instruments for trading purposes. The Company

also does not have any derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments and has not designated any non-

derivatives as hedging instruments.

The Company has interest rate risk relative to its

outstanding borrowings under its Credit Facility (see Note 5).

Loans under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the

Company’s election, either at the prime rate or LIBOR plus

a percentage point spread based on certain specified

financial ratios.

The Company’s policy has been to manage interest cost

using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt (see Note 5). To

manage this risk in a cost efficient manner, the Company

entered into an interest rate swap on May 4, 2006 in which

it agreed to exchange with a counterparty, at specified

intervals effective August 3, 2006, the difference between

fixed and variable interest amounts calculated by reference

to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. The interest

rate swap was accounted for as a cash flow hedge. The

swapped portion of the Company’s outstanding debt is

fixed at a rate of 5.57% plus the Company’s credit spread,

or 7.07% based on the Company’s credit spread at July 31,

2009 over the 7-year life of the interest rate swap.

The swapped portion of the outstanding debt or notional

amount of the interest rate swap is as follows:

From August 3, 2006 to May 2, 2007 $ 525,000
From May 3, 2007 to May 5, 2008 650,000
From May 6, 2008 to May 4, 2009 625,000
From May 5, 2009 to May 3, 2010 600,000
From May 4, 2010 to May 2, 2011 575,000
From May 3, 2011 to May 2, 2012 550,000
From May 3, 2012 to May 3, 2013 525,000

At July 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of the

Company’s derivative instrument was as follows:

July 31, 2009

Balance Sheet Location Fair Value

Interest rate swap Interest rate swap liability $61,232
Total $61,232

The estimated fair value of the interest rate swap liability

at July 31, 2009 increased $21,614 from its estimated fair

value of $39,618 at August 1, 2008. The estimated fair

value of the Company’s interest rate swap liability at July 31,

2009 incorporates the Company’s own non-performance

risk. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 resulted in a $5,809

decrease in the Company’s interest rate swap liability

related to non-performance risk in the first quarter of 2009.

The adjustment related to the Company’s non-performance

risk at July 31, 2009 decreased $437 from adoption which

resulted in an increase of $437 in the fair value of the

interest rate swap liability. The offset to the interest rate

swap liability is recorded in accumulated other compre-

hensive loss (“AOCL”), net of the deferred tax asset, and

will be reclassified into earnings over the term of the

underlying debt. Any portion of the fair value of the swap

determined to be ineffective will be recognized currently

in earnings.

Cash flows related to the interest rate swap are included

in interest expense and in operating activities. As of

July 31, 2009, the estimated pre-tax portion of AOCL that

is expected to be reclassified into earnings over the

next twelve months is $28,782.

The following table summarizes the pre-tax effects of

the Company’s derivative instrument on income and AOCL
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for the year ended July 31, 2009:

Amount of Loss Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized in AOCL Reclassified from AOCL Reclassified from

on Derivative into Income AOCL into Income
(Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion)

Cash flow hedge:
Interest rate swap $(21,614) Interest expense $19,469

No ineffectiveness has been recorded in 2009, 2008

and 2007.

7 SHARE REPURCHASES

On July 31, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors approved

share repurchases of up to $65,000 of the Company’s common

stock. The principal criteria for share repurchases are that

they be accretive to expected net income per share, are

within the limits imposed by the Company’s Credit Facility

and that they be made only from free cash flow (operating

cash flow less capital expenditures and dividends) rather

than borrowings. During 2009, the Company did not

make any share repurchases owing to a suspension of the

Company’s share repurchase plans during the current

economic climate. During 2010, however, the Company has

been authorized, and intends, to repurchase shares to

offset share dilution that might result from employee option

exercises or employee share issuances.

Pursuant to prior grants of authority, during 2008, the

Company repurchased a total of 1,625,000 shares of its

common stock in the open market at an aggregate cost of

$52,380. Related transaction costs and fees that were

recorded as a reduction to shareholders’ equity resulted in

the shares being repurchased at an average cost of $32.23

per share.

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Cracker Barrel units represent a single, integrated operation

with two related and substantially integrated product

lines. The operating expenses of the restaurant and retail

product lines of a Cracker Barrel unit are shared and are

indistinguishable in many respects. Accordingly, the

Company manages its business on the basis of one reportable

operating segment. All of the Company’s operations are

located within the United States. As stated in Note 16, the

operations of Logan’s are reported as discontinued

operations and have been excluded from segment reporting.

Total revenue was comprised of the following at:

2009 2008 2007

Revenue from continuing
operations:
Restaurant $1,875,688 $1,872,152 $1,844,804
Retail 491,597 512,369 506,772
Total revenue from
continuing operations $2,367,285 $2,384,521 $2,351,576

9 SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTIONS

In the fourth quarter of 2009, Cracker Barrel completed

sale-leaseback transactions involving 15 of its owned stores

and its retail distribution center. Under the transactions,

the land, buildings and improvements at the locations were

sold for pre-tax net proceeds of $56,260. The stores and

the retail distribution center have been leased back for

initial terms of 20 and 15 years, respectively. Equipment

was not included. The leases include specified renewal

options for up to 20 additional years. Net rent expense

during the initial term of the store leases will be

approximately $4,867 annually, and the assets sold and

leased back previously had depreciation expense of

approximately $753 annually. Net rent expense during the

initial term of the retail distribution center lease will be

approximately $1,142 annually, and the assets sold and

leased back previously had depreciation expense of

approximately $331 annually. The Company recorded a loss

on three of the stores, which is recorded in other store

operating expenses in 2009. The gains on the sales of the

12 stores and retail distribution center will be amortized

over the initial lease terms of 20 and 15 years, respectively.

Net proceeds from the sale-leaseback transactions, along

with excess cash from operations, were used to reduce

outstanding borrowings under the Company’s Credit Facility.

On July 31, 2000, Cracker Barrel completed a sale-

leaseback transaction involving 65 of its owned stores.

Under the transaction, the land, buildings and building

improvements at the locations were sold and leased back

for an initial term of 21 years. The leases for these

65 stores include specified renewal options for up to 20

additional years and have certain financial covenants

related to fixed charge coverage for the leased units. At

July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, the Company was in

compliance with all those covenants.
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10 LITIGATION SETTLEMENT

The Company was a member of a plaintiff class of a settled

lawsuit against Visa U.S.A. Inc. (“Visa”) and MasterCard

International Incorporated (“MasterCard”). The Visa

Check/Mastermoney Antitrust litigation settlement became

final on June 1, 2005. Because the Company believed

this settlement represented an indeterminate mix of loss

recovery and gain contingency, the Company could not

record the expected settlement proceeds until the

settlement amount and timing were reasonably certain.

During the second quarter of 2007, the Company received

its share of the proceeds, which was $1,318, and recorded

the amount of the proceeds as a gain that is included

in other store operating expenses in the Consolidated

Statement of Income.

11 GAINS ON PROPERTY DISPOSITION

During 2008, the Company sold the one remaining Logan’s

property that the Company had retained and leased back

following the divestiture of Logan’s (see Note 16). This

property was classified as property held for sale and had a

net book value of approximately $1,960. The Company

received net proceeds of approximately $3,770, which

resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $1,810. The gain

is recorded in general and administrative expenses

from continuing operations in the Consolidated Statement

of Income.

During 2007, the Company sold two of the three Logan’s

properties the Company had retained and leased back

following the divestiture of Logan’s. The Company received

total net proceeds of approximately $6,187 on the two

properties, which resulted in a total pre-tax gain of

approximately $2,505. The gain is recorded in general and

administrative expenses from continuing operations in

the Consolidated Statement of Income. Additionally, during

2007, the State of New York condemned a portion of

the land on which a Cracker Barrel store was located to

build a road. The Company received condemnation

proceeds of approximately $760 and recorded a pre-tax

gain of approximately $500 in other store operating

expenses from continuing operations in the Consolidated

Statement of Income.

12 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s employee compensation plans are

administered by the Compensation Committee of the

Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”).

The Committee is authorized to determine, at time periods

within its discretion and subject to the direction of

the Board, which employees will be granted options and

other awards, the number of shares covered by any awards

granted, and within applicable limits, the terms and

provisions relating to the exercise of any awards.

Directors Plan

In 1989, the Company’s shareholders approved the Cracker

Barrel Old Country Store, Inc. 1989 Stock Option Plan for

Non-employee Directors (“Directors Plan”). Stock options

granted under the Directors Plan had an exercise price

equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common

stock on the date of grant and expire one year from the

retirement of the director from the Board. An aggregate of

1,518,750 shares of the Company’s common stock was

authorized for issuance under the Directors Plan. Owing to

the overall plan limit, no shares have been granted since

1994. At July 31, 2009, there were outstanding awards for

244,762 shares under the Directors Plan.

Employee Plan

The Company’s 2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan

(“Employee Plan”) covered employees who are not officers

or directors of the Company. Stock options granted under

the Employee Plan had an exercise price of at least 100%

of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock

based on the date of grant and become exercisable each

year at a cumulative rate of 33% per year and expire ten

years from the date of grant. An aggregate of 4,750,000

shares of the Company’s common stock originally were

authorized under the Employee Plan, which expired

on July 29, 2005. At July 31, 2009, there were outstanding

awards for 354,260 shares under the Employee Plan.

Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan

(the “Plan”) allows the Committee to grant options
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to purchase an aggregate of 17,525,702 shares of the

Company’s common stock. At July 31, 2009, there were

599,954 shares of the Company’s common stock reserved

for future issuance under the Plan. The option price per

share under the Plan must be at least 100% of the fair

market value of the Company’s common stock on the date

of grant. Options granted to date under the Plan generally

have been exercisable each year at a cumulative rate of

33% per year and expire ten years from the date of grant.

At July 31, 2009, there were outstanding awards for

1,314,289 shares under this plan.

Omnibus Plan

The Company’s 2002 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan

(the “Omnibus Plan”) allows the Committee to grant awards

for an aggregate of 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s

common stock. The Omnibus Plan authorizes the following

types of awards to all eligible participants other than non-

employee directors: stock options, stock appreciation

rights, stock awards, nonvested stock, performance shares,

cash bonuses, qualified performance-based awards or any

other type of award consistent with the Omnibus Plan’s

purpose. The option price per share of all options granted

under the Omnibus Plan is required to be at least 100% of

the fair market value of the Company’s common stock based

on the date of grant. Under the Omnibus Plan, non-

employee directors are granted annually on the day of the

annual shareholders meeting an option to purchase up to

5,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, and awards

of up to 2,000 shares of nonvested stock or nonvested

stock units. Additionally, non-employee directors newly

elected or appointed between an annual shareholders

meeting (typically in November) and the following July 31

receive an option on the day of election or appointment to

acquire up to 5,000 shares of the Company’s common stock

or awards of up to 2,000 shares of nonvested stock or

nonvested stock units. Options granted to date under the

Omnibus Plan become exercisable each year at a cumulative

rate of 33% per year and expire ten years from the date of

grant. At July 31, 2009, there were outstanding awards for

1,287,675 shares under this plan and 539,924 shares of

the Company’s common stock reserved for future issuance

under this plan.

Mid-Term Incentive and Retention Plans

The Committee established the FY2006 and FY2007 Mid-

Term Incentive and Retention Plans (“2006 MTIRP” and

“2007 MTIRP,” respectively) pursuant to the Omnibus Plan,

for the purpose of rewarding certain officers. The 2006

MTIRP award was calculated during 2006 based on

achievement of qualified financial performance measures,

but restricted until vesting occurred on the last day of

2008. At August 1, 2008, the nonvested stock of 55,599

shares under the 2006 MTIRP vested, and cash and

dividends earned under the 2006 MTIRP of $205 and $71,

respectively, were paid on August 4, 2008.

The 2007 MTIRP award was calculated during 2007 based

on achievement of qualified financial performance

measures, but restricted until vesting occurs on the last day

of 2009. At July 31, 2009, the nonvested stock of 63,098

shares under the 2007 MTIRP vested, and cash and

dividends earned under the 2007 MTIRP of $346 and $96,

respectively, were paid on August 3, 2009.

Stock Ownership Plan

The Committee established the Stock Ownership

Achievement Plan (“Stock Ownership Plan”) pursuant to the

Omnibus Plan, for the purpose of rewarding certain

executive officers of the Company for early achievement of

target stock ownership levels in 2005 and in the future.

Upon meeting the stock ownership levels at an earlier date

than required and upon approval by the Committee, the

Company will award unrestricted shares to those certain

officers on the first Monday of the next fiscal year. The

Stock Ownership Plan reward is expensed over the year

during which those certain officers achieve the stock

ownership target, beginning when the target is met. On

August 3, 2009, August 4, 2008 and August 6, 2007,

the Company issued 2,500, 2,100 and 2,500 unrestricted

shares of common stock less shares withheld for taxes to

the certain executive officers that earned the award in

2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Stock Ownership

Plan expired at the end of 2009 and the Committee elected

to not renew the Plan. As a result, no additional awards

will be made under this plan.
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2008 Long-Term Performance Plan

The Committee established the FY2008 Long-Term

Performance Plan (“2008 LTPP”) pursuant to the Omnibus

Plan, for the purpose of rewarding certain officers with

shares of the Company’s common stock if the Company

achieved certain performance targets. During 2008, the

2008 LTPP was rescinded and replaced with discretionary

cash bonuses for all non-executive team members,

which were paid in September 2008. Instead of receiving

discretionary cash bonuses, on August 1, 2008, the

executive team members were awarded 196,525 shares of

stock less shares withheld for taxes. These shares vested

immediately but were subject to restrictions on resale for

one to three years resulting in share-based compensation

expense of $4,436.

2009 Long-Term Performance Plan

The Committee established the FY2009 Long-Term

Performance Plan (“2009 LTPP”) pursuant to the Omnibus

Plan, for the purpose of rewarding certain officers with

shares of the Company’s common stock if the Company

achieved certain performance targets. Subsequent to the

end of 2009, the 2009 LTPP plan was rescinded and

replaced with discretionary cash bonuses for all officers,

which were paid in September 2009.

Other Share-Based Awards

In the third quarter of 2009, the Company issued to its

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, options

to purchase 25,000 shares of the Company’s common stock

and 25,000 nonvested stock grants. The stock options and

16,666 of the nonvested stock grants vest over three years

and 8,334 of the nonvested stock grants vest over a

two-year period. At July 31, 2009, the entire 50,000 share

award was outstanding. The stock options and stock

awards were made as “inducement grants” outside of the

Company’s plans under NASDAQ rules that allow such

awards without shareholder approval.

Stock Options

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity as of

July 31, 2009, and changes during 2009 is presented in the

following table:

(Shares in thousands)

Weighted-
Average

Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic

Fixed Options Shares Price Term Value

Outstanding at August 1, 2008 3,011 $31.09
Granted 299 26.04
Exercised (309) 17.51
Forfeited/Expired (106) 31.33
Outstanding at July 31, 2009 2,895 $32.01 5.20 $6,906
Exercisable 2,312 $31.74 4.37 $6,063

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options

granted during 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $9.33, $11.99,

and $13.10, respectively. The intrinsic value for stock

options is defined as the difference between the current

market value and the grant price. The total intrinsic values

of options exercised during 2009, 2008 and 2007 were

$3,725, $785, and $16,298, respectively.

During 2009, cash received from the exercise of share-

based compensation awards and the corresponding issuance

of 397,344 shares of the Company’s common stock was

$4,362. The tax benefit upon exercise of share-based

compensation awards totaled $937.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the

date of grant using a binomial lattice-based option

valuation model, which incorporates ranges of assumptions

for inputs as shown in the following table. The assumptions

are as follows:
• The expected volatility is a blend of implied volatility

based on market-traded options on the Company’s

common stock and historical volatility of the Company’s

stock over the contractual life of the options.
• The Company uses historical data to estimate option

exercise and employee termination behavior within the

valuation model; separate groups of employees that

have similar historical exercise behavior are considered

separately for valuation purposes. The expected life of

options granted is derived from the output of the option

valuation model and represents the period of time the

options are expected to be outstanding.
• The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury

yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods

within the contractual life of the option.
• The expected dividend yield is based on the Company’s

current dividend yield as the best estimate of projected
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dividend yield for periods within the contractual life of

the option.

Year Ended

July 31, 2009 August 1, 2008 August 3, 2007

Dividend yield range 2.59% - 5.35% 1.8% - 2.2% 1.2% - 1.4%
Expected volatility 43% - 61% 31% - 34% 30% - 31%
Risk-free interest rate range 0.5% - 5.4% 2.9% - 5.0% 4.4% - 5.2%
Expected term (in years) 6.7 - 6.9 6.3 1.2 - 6.2

Nonvested Stock

Nonvested stock grants consist of the Company’s common

stock and generally vest over 2-5 years. All nonvested

stock grants are time vested except the nonvested stock

grants of one executive that are based upon the

achievement of strategic goals. If any performance goals

are not met, no compensation cost is ultimately recognized

and, to the extent previously recognized, compensation

cost is reversed. During 2008, based on the Company’s

determination that performance goals would not be

achieved for one executive’s nonvested stock grants, the

Company reversed approximately $3,508 of share-based

compensation expense. During 2009, the Company did not

have any similar reversals.

Generally, the fair value of each nonvested stock grant

is equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the

date of grant reduced by the present value of expected

dividends to be paid prior to the vesting period, discounted

using an appropriate risk-free interest rate. Certain

nonvested stock grants accrue dividends and their fair value

is equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the

date of the grant.

A summary of the Company’s nonvested stock activity as

of July 31, 2009, and changes during 2009 is presented in

the following table:

(Shares in thousands)

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Nonvested Stock Shares Fair Value

Unvested at August 1, 2008 260 $35.91
Granted 216 17.83
Vested (120) 31.86
Forfeited — —
Unvested at July 31, 2009 356 $26.28

The total fair value of nonvested stock that vested

during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $3,829, $7,111, and

$1,608, respectively.

As of July 31, 2009, there was $7,912 of total

unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share-

based compensation arrangements that is expected to

be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.78 years.

Compensation Cost

Compensation cost for share-based payment arrangements

was $3,680, $4,673 and $6,360, respectively, for stock

options in 2009, 2008 and 2007. Compensation cost for

nonvested and restricted stock was $3,266, $3,818 and

$6,357, respectively, in 2009, 2008 and 2007. Included in

the total for 2007 is share-based compensation expense

from continuing operations of $6,294 and $6,837,

respectively, for stock options and nonvested stock. Share-

based compensation from continuing operations is

recorded in general and administrative expenses. The total

income tax benefit recognized in the Consolidated

Statement of Income for 2009, 2008 and 2007 for share-

based compensation arrangements was $937, $2,564

and $4,406, respectively.

In 2007, the Company modified certain share-based

compensation awards for eleven Logan’s employees. These

employees would have forfeited these unvested awards

upon Logan’s divestiture due to the performance and/or

service conditions of the awards not being met. The

modification of these awards consisted of the cancellation

of the Mid-Term Incentive Retention Plans (“MTIRP”)

and nonvested stock grants for these employees and the

concurrent grant of cash replacement awards for the

cancelled awards. No replacement awards for these

employees’ stock options were given and thus, the unvested

stock options were forfeited upon the completion of the

Logan’s divestiture. The previously accrued compensation

cost for these awards was reversed and no compensation

cost was recorded for these awards. Total compensation

cost reversed related to these awards was approximately

$101 for stock options and $559 for nonvested stock

awards and is recorded as discontinued operations in the

Consolidated Financial Statements. The cash replacement

awards for the 2005 and 2006 MTIRP awards retained their

original vesting terms. The cash replacement awards of

the nonvested stock grants retained their original vesting

terms and vest on various dates between August 2007 and
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February 2011. Compensation cost for these modified

awards will be recognized by Logan’s over the remaining

vesting period of the awards.

During 2007, the Company also recognized additional

compensation expense of $1,731 for retirement eligible

employees under its MTIRP plans. Compensation expense is

recognized to the date on which retirement eligibility is

achieved, if shorter than the vesting period.

13 EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLANS

The Company sponsors a qualified defined contribution

retirement plan (“Plan I”) covering salaried and hourly

employees who have completed one year of service and

have attained the age of twenty-one. Plan I allows eligible

employees to defer receipt of up to 16% of their

compensation, as defined in the plan.

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified defined

contribution retirement plan (“Plan II”) covering highly

compensated employees, as defined in the plan. Plan II

allows eligible employees to defer receipt of up to 50% of

their base compensation and 100% of their eligible

bonuses, as defined in the plan. Contributions under both

Plan I and Plan II may be invested in various investment

funds at the employee’s discretion. Such contributions,

including the Company matching contribution described

below, may not be invested in the Company’s common

stock. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company matched 25%

of employee contributions for each participant in either

Plan I or Plan II up to a total of 6% of the employee’s

compensation. Employee contributions vest immediately

while Company contributions vest 20% annually beginning

on the participant’s first anniversary of employment and

are vested 100% on the participant’s fifth anniversary of

employment. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company

contributed approximately $2,052, $1,801 and $1,552,

respectively, under Plan I and approximately $285, $356

and $323, respectively, under Plan II, for continuing

operations. At the inception of Plan II, the Company

established a Rabbi Trust to fund Plan II obligations. The

market value of the trust assets for Plan II of $22,583 is

included in other assets and the liability to Plan II

participants of $22,583 is included in other long-term

obligations. Company contributions under Plan I and

Plan II related to continuing operations are recorded

as either labor and other related expenses or general and

administrative expenses.

14 COMPENSATORY PLANS AND ARRANGEMENTS

In connection with the Company’s 2006 strategic

initiatives, the Committee approved, pursuant to the

Company’s 2002 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (see

Note 12), the “2006 Success Plan” for certain officers

of the Company. The maximum amount payable under the

2006 Success Plan was $6,647 by the Company and

$1,168 by Logan’s. On June 6, 2007, the Company paid

$6,647 under this plan. During 2007, the Company

recorded expense of $2,137 for this plan as general and

administrative expenses from continuing operations and

recorded $2,136 related to the Company’s officers and $206

related to Logan’s officers as discontinued operations.

15 INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects

of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes

and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred

tax liability consisted of the following at:

July 31, August 1,
2009 2008

Deferred tax assets:
Financial accruals without economic

performance $ 63,480 $ 57,155
Other 7,629 5,985

Deferred tax assets $ 71,109 $ 63,140
Deferred tax liabilities

Excess tax depreciation over book $ 78,607 $ 75,213
Other 24,866 24,182

Deferred tax liabilities 103,473 99,395
Net deferred tax liability $ 32,364 $ 36,255

The Company provided no valuation allowance against

deferred tax assets recorded as of July 31, 2009 and

August 1, 2008, as the “more-likely-than-not” valuation

method determined all deferred assets to be fully realizable

in future taxable periods. The components of the

provision for income taxes from continuing operations for

each of the three years were as follows:
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2009 2008 2007

Current:
Federal $20,307 $23,536 $ 46,883
State 3,320 1,789 7,824

Deferred:
Federal (1,157) 1,565 (14,250)
State 1,635 1,322 41

Total income tax provision $24,105 $28,212 $ 40,498

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes from

continuing operations and the amount computed by

multiplying the income before the provision for income

taxes by the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% was as

follows:

2009 2008 2007

Provision computed at federal
statutory income tax rate $31,521 $32,730 $40,768

State and local income taxes,
net of federal benefit 1,697 2,992 6,143

Employer tax credits for
FICA taxes paid on employee
tip income (6,383) (5,846) (5,449)

Federal reserve adjustments — — 168
Other employer tax credits (3,740) (2,994) (3,915)
Section 162(m) non-deductible

compensation 44 — 1,809
Other-net 966 1,330 974
Total income tax provision $24,105 $28,212 $40,498

As of July 31, 2009, the Company’s liability for uncertain

tax positions was $26,137 ($17,364, net of related federal

tax benefits of $8,773). As of August 1, 2008, the

Company’s liability for uncertain tax positions was $26,602

($17,753, net of related federal tax benefits of $8,849).

At July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, the amount of

uncertain tax positions that, if recognized, would affect the

effective tax rate is $17,364 and $17,753, respectively.

Summarized below is a tabular reconciliation of the

beginning and ending balance of the Company’s total gross

liability for uncertain tax positions exclusive of interest

and penalties:

July 31, August 1,
2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year $22,879 $21,338
Tax positions related to the current year:

Additions 3,168 3,857
Reductions — —

Tax positions related to prior years:
Additions 90 1,342
Reductions (2,146) (995)

Settlements (127) —
Expiration of statute of limitations (1,908) (2,663)
Balance at end of year $21,956 $22,879

The Company recognizes, net of tax, interest and

estimated penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its

provision for income taxes. At July 31, 2009 and August 1,

2008, the Company recognized approximately $302 and

$780, respectively, in interest and penalties related to

uncertain tax positions in its provision for income taxes. At

July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, the Company’s liability

for uncertain tax positions included $3,092 and $2,790,

respectively, net of tax for potential interest and penalties.

In many cases, the Company’s uncertain tax positions

are related to tax years that remain subject to examination

by the relevant taxing authorities. Based on the outcome of

these examinations or as a result of the expiration of the

statutes of limitations for specific taxing jurisdictions, the

related uncertain tax positions taken regarding previously

filed tax returns could decrease from those recorded

as liabilities for uncertain tax positions in the Company’s

financial statements at July 31, 2009 by approximately

$5,000 to $6,000 within the next twelve months.

At July 31, 2009, the Company was subject to income

tax examinations for its U.S. federal income taxes

after 2005 and for state and local income taxes generally

after 2005.

16 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On December 6, 2006, the Company completed the sale of

Logan’s, for total consideration of approximately $485,000.

A portion of the consideration was funded by a real estate

sale-leaseback transaction, which required the Company

to retain three Logan’s restaurant locations at that time.

The Company leased these three properties to Logan’s under

terms and conditions consistent with the sale-leaseback

transaction. Two of these properties were sold in 2007 and

the remaining property was sold in 2008 (see Note 11).

The Company has reported in discontinued operations

certain expenses related to the divestiture of Logan’s

in 2009, 2008 and 2007 and the results of operations of

Logan’s through December 5, 2006, which consist of

the following:

6948Financials.qxd:Layout 1  10/6/09  3:10 PM  Page 73



74

July 31, August 1, August 3,
2009 2008 2007

Revenues $ — $ — $154,529
(Loss) income before tax benefit

(provision for income taxes)
from discontinued operations (47) (229) 7,450

Income tax benefit
(provision for income taxes) 16 80 (2,279)

(Loss) income from discontinued
operations, net of tax, before
gain on sale of Logan’s (31) (149) 5,171

Gain on sale of Logan’s,
net of tax of $215 and $8,592,
respectively — 399 80,911

(Loss) income from discontinued
operations, net of tax $(31) $ 250 $ 86,082

In 2009, the Company incurred $47 in expenses related

to certain tax indemnifications related to Logan’s (see

Note 18). In 2008, the Company recorded an adjustment in

accordance with the Logan’s sale agreement related to

taxes, resulting in additional proceeds from the sale of

Logan’s of $614.

A reconciliation of the income tax benefit (provision for

income taxes) from discontinued operations and the

amount computed by multiplying the income before the

income tax benefit (provision for income taxes) from

discontinued operations by the U.S. federal statutory rate

of 35% was as follows:

July 31, August 1, August 3,
2009 2008 2007

Income tax benefit
(provision for income taxes)
computed at federal statutory
income tax rate $16 $(135) $(11,955)

State and local income taxes,
net of federal benefit — — 621

Employer tax credits for FICA taxes
paid on employee tip income — — 478

Other-net — — (15)
Total income tax benefit

(provision for income taxes)
from discontinued operations $16 $(135) $(10,871)

17 NET INCOME PER SHARE
AND WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES

The following table reconciles the components of diluted

earnings per share computations:

July 31, August 1, August 3,
2009 2008 2007

Income from continuing operations per share numerator:
Income from continuing

operations $ 65,957 $ 65,303 $ 75,983
Add: Interest and loan

acquisition costs associated
with Senior Notes,
net of related tax effects
(see Note 2) — — 3,977

Income from continuing
operations available to
common shareholders $ 65,957 $ 65,303 $ 79,960

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations,
net of tax, per share
numerator $ (31) $ 250 $ 86,082

Net income per share numerator:
Income from operations $ 65,926 $ 65,553 $ 162,065
Add: Interest and loan
acquisition costs associated
with Senior Notes,
net of related tax effects
(see Note 2) — — 3,977
Income from operations

available to common
shareholders $ 65,926 $ 65,553 $ 166,042

Income from continuing
operations, (loss) income
from discontinued operations,
net of tax, and net income
per share denominator:
Basic weighted average

shares outstanding 22,458,971 22,782,608 27,643,098
Add potential dilution:

Senior and New Notes
(see Note 2) — — 3,479,087

Stock options and
nonvested stock and
stock awards 328,662 623,436 634,397

Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding 22,787,633 23,406,044 31,756,582

18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to various

legal and regulatory proceedings and claims incidental to

and arising out of the ordinary course of its business.

In the opinion of management, based upon information

currently available, the ultimate liability with respect

to these proceedings and claims will not materially affect

the Company’s consolidated results of operations or

financial position.

The Company is contingently liable pursuant to standby

letters of credit as credit guarantees related to insurers.

As of July 31, 2009, the Company had $33,892 of standby

letters of credit related to securing reserved claims under
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workers’ compensation insurance. All standby letters of

credit are renewable annually and reduce the Company’s

availability under its Revolving Credit facility (see Note 5).

The Company is secondarily liable for lease payments

under the terms of an operating lease that has been

assigned to a third party. The lease has a remaining life of

approximately 4.2 years with annual lease payments of

approximately $361 for a total guarantee of $1,502. The

Company’s performance is required only if the assignee fails

to perform its obligations as lessee. At this time, the

Company has no reason to believe that the assignee will

not perform and, therefore, no provision has been made in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet for amounts to be paid in

case of non-performance by the assignee.

Upon the sale of Logan’s, the Company reaffirmed its

guarantee of the lease payments for two Logan’s

restaurants. At July 31, 2009, the operating leases had

remaining lives of 2.4 and 10.7 years with annual payments

of approximately $94 and $101, respectively, for a total

guarantee of $1,417. The Company’s performance is

required only if Logan’s fails to perform its obligations as

lessee. At this time, the Company has no reason to believe

Logan’s will not perform, and therefore, no provision has

been made in the Consolidated Balance Sheet for amounts

to be paid as a result of non-performance by Logan’s.

The Company enters into certain indemnification

agreements in favor of third parties in the ordinary course

of business. The Company believes that the probability of

incurring an actual liability under such indemnification

agreements is sufficiently remote so that no liability has

been recorded. In connection with the divestiture of

Logan’s and Logan’s sale-leaseback transaction (see

Note 16), the Company entered into various agreements to

indemnify third parties against certain tax obligations,

for any breaches of representations and warranties in the

applicable transaction documents and for certain costs and

expenses that may arise out of specified real estate

matters, including potential relocation and legal costs. With

the exception of certain tax indemnifications, the Company

believes that the probability of being required to make any

indemnification payments to Logan’s is remote. Therefore,

at July 31, 2009 and August 1, 2008, respectively, the

Company has recorded a liability of $72 and $377 in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet for these potential tax

indemnifications, but no provision has been recorded for

potential non-tax indemnifications.

The Company maintains insurance coverage for various

aspects of its business and operations. The Company has

elected, however, to retain all or a portion of losses that

occur through the use of various deductibles, limits and

retentions under its insurance programs. This situation may

subject the Company to some future liability for which

it is only partially insured, or completely uninsured. The

Company intends to mitigate any such future liability

by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in

negotiating the terms and conditions of its contracts.

See Note 2 for a further discussion of insurance and

insurance reserves.

As of July 31, 2009, the Company operated 190 Cracker

Barrel stores in leased facilities and also leased certain land

and advertising billboards (see Notes 2 and 9). These leases

have been classified as either capital or operating leases.

The interest rates for capital leases vary from 5% to 10%.

Amortization of capital leases is included with depreciation

expense. A majority of the Company’s lease agreements

provide for renewal options and some of these options

contain escalation clauses. Additionally, certain store leases

provide for percentage lease payments based upon sales

volume in excess of specified minimum levels.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum

lease payments under capital leases, together with

the present value of the minimum lease payments as of

July 31, 2009:

Year

2010 $22
2011 22
2012 22
2013 23
Total minimum lease payments 89
Less amount representing interest 11
Present value of minimum lease payments 78
Less current portion 18
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations $60

The following is a schedule by year of the future

minimum rental payments to be received under the

Company’s sublease, as of July 31, 2009.
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Year

2010 $ 62
2011 66
2012 67
2013 67
2014 67
Later years 233
Total $562

The following is a schedule by year of the future

minimum rental payments required under operating leases,

excluding leases for advertising billboards (see Note 2),

as of July 31, 2009. Included in the amounts below are

optional renewal periods, for which at the inception of the

lease, it is reasonably assured that the Company will

exercise these options (see Note 2).

Year

2010 $ 36,890
2011 35,601
2012 35,668
2013 35,980
2014 36,401
Later years 584,604
Total $765,144

Rent expense under operating leases, excluding leases

for advertising billboards (see Note 2), is recognized

on a straight-line, or average, basis and includes any pre-

opening periods during construction for which the Company

is legally obligated under the terms of the lease, and

any optional renewal periods, for which at the inception

of the lease, it is reasonably assured that the Company will

exercise those renewal options. This lease period is

consistent with the period over which leasehold

improvements are amortized. Rent expense from continuing

operations for each of the three years was:

Minimum Contingent Total

2009 $33,929 $535 $34,464
2008 32,024 669 32,693
2007 29,691 618 30,309

19 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly financial data for 2009 and 2008 are summarized

as follows:
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2009
Total revenue $573,932 $630,182 $567,568 $595,603
Gross profit 392,575 407,689 391,241 410,871
Income before

income taxes 18,525 25,992 16,276 29,269
Income from continuing

operations 12,832 18,362 11,948 22,815
(Loss) income from

discontinued operations,
net of tax — — 4 (35)

Net income 12,832 18,362 11,952 22,780
Income from continuing

operations per share
– basic $ 0.57 $ 0.82 $ 0.53 $ 1.01

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations,
net of tax, per share
– basic $ — $ — $ — $ —

Net income per share
– basic $ 0.57 $ 0.82 $ 0.53 $ 1.01

Income from continuing
operations per share
– diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.81 $ 0.52 $ 0.99

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations,
net of tax, per share
– diluted $ — $ — $ — $ —

Net income per share
– diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.81 $ 0.52 $ 0.99

2008
Total revenue $581,165 $634,453 $567,138 $601,765
Gross profit 400,937 410,718 386,550 412,559
Income before income

taxes 21,170 31,095 13,527 27,723
Income from continuing

operations 13,983 20,234 10,479 20,607
(Loss) income from

discontinued operations,
net of tax (94) (17) (35) 396

Net income 13,889 20,217 10,444 21,003
Income from continuing

operations per share
– basic $ 0.59 $ 0.87 $ 0.47 $ 0.93

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations,
net of tax, per share
– basic $ — $ — $ — $ 0.02

Net income per share
– basic $ 0.59 $ 0.87 $ 0.47 $ 0.95

Income from continuing
operations per share
– diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.85 $ 0.46 $ 0.91

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations,
net of tax, per share
– diluted $ — $ — $ — $ 0.02

Net income per share
– diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.85 $ 0.46 $ 0.93
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